Penallta House,
Tredomen Park,
¥strad Mynach,
Hengoed CF82 7PG

Annwyl Syr/Fadam,

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

Ty Penallta, ‘
Parc Tredomen,
Ystrad Mynach, CA ERPH' '.LY

CEFIINTY BOROLNGH CO0IINCTL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTIREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
&

Hengoed CF82 7PG

www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud a'r agenda hwn cysylltwch & Emma Sullivan
(Rhif Ffén: 01443 864420 Ebost: sullie@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 9 Medi 2021

Bydd cyfarfod digidol o'r Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal trwy Microsoft Teams ar Dydd Mercher, 15fed Medi,
2021 am 10.30 am. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol. . Mae croeso i chi
ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn

dymuno gwneud hynny.

Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei recordio a bydd ar gael i'w weld trwy wefan y Cyngor, ac eithrio
trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr
unigolion sy'n bresennol ac/neu sy'n siarad yn ystod y Cabinet ar gael i'r cyhoedd trwy'r recordiad ar
wefan y Cyngor: www.caerffili.gov.uk

Yr eiddoch yn gywir,

Christina Harrhy
PRIF WEITHREDWR

AGENDA

Tudalennau

1 | dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb

2 Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb.

A greener place Man gwyrddach

00,

X
<
Gallwch ohebu mewn unrhyw iaith neu f fie


http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/

Atgoffi'r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol &
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr
a Swyddogion.

| gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:-

3 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 1 Medi 2021.

1-6
Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet — Nodi.
4 Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.
7-10
| dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt: -
5 Bwrdd Adfywio — Cynigion Prosiect.
11-20
6 Prosbectws a Chynllun Datblygu Rhaglenni LIywodraeth Cymru (PDP).
21-60
7 Darparu Cynllun Buddion a Chydnabod Staff.
61 -98
8 Rhyddid y Fwrdeistref - Enillwyr Olympaidd.
99 -102

9 Prawf lles y cyhoedd. | dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad canlynol sydd ym marn y Swyddog
Priodol yn gallu cael ei drafod pan nad yw'r cyfarfod ar agor i'r cyhoedd ac i ystyried yn gyntaf os
yw lles y cyhoedd yn golygu y dylai'r cyfarfod gael ei gau i'r cyhoedd ar gyfer ystyriaeth o'r eitem-

103 - 104
Derbyn eitem frys ac eithriedig: -
10 Adroddiad Gorwario Cost — Y Lawnt, Rhymni.

105-112
Cylchrediad:
Cynghorwyr

S. Cook, N. George, C.J. Gordon, P.A. Marsden, L. Phipps, J. Pritchard, Mrs E. Stenner, A. Whitcombe a
R. Whiting,

A Swyddogion Priodol.

SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i'r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’'n ymwneud ag
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.

Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas &’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu.



Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i'r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan neu cysylltwch & Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk neu ffoniwch
01443 863028.



http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd

Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3

R
LAERDHILLY

CAERFFILI
>
CABINET

MINUTES OF THE REMOTE MEETING HELD VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS
ON WEDNESDAY, 15T SEPTEMBER 2021 AT 10.30 A.M,

PRESENT:
Councillor P. Marsden (Leader) - Chair

Councillors:
S. Cook (Social Care), N. George (Waste, Public Protection and Street Scene), C. Gordon
(Corporate Services), L. Phipps (Housing), J. Pritchard (Infrastructure and Property), E. Stenner
(Performance, Economy and Enterprise), A. Whitcombe (Sustainability, Planning and Fleet) and
R. Whiting (Learning and Leisure).

Together with:

C. Harrhy (Chief Executive) D. Street (Corporate Director Education and Corporate Services)
and M.S. Williams (Corporate Director — Economy and Environment).

Also in Attendance:

R. Tranter (Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer), L. Lucas (Head of Customer and
Digital Services), M. Harris (Committee Services Support Officer/Chauffeur) and E. Sullivan
(Senior Committee Services Officer).

RECORDING AND VOTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Leader reminded those present that the meeting was being filmed but would not be live
streamed, however a recording would be available following the meeting via the Council’s
website — Click Here To View. She advised that decisions would be made by Microsoft
Forms.

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from R. Edmunds (Corporate Director — Education and
Corporate Services).

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest received at the beginning or during the course of the
meeting.

3. CABINET = 21st JULY 2021

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 21st July 2021 were approved as
a correct record.

Page 1


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Meetings,-agendas,-minutes-and-reports/Council-meetings

CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - TO NOTE

Cabinet were provided with the Cabinet Forward Work Programme, which detailed the
scheduled reports for 29" September 2021. Members were reminded that the Cabinet
Forward Work Programme is a working document and therefore subject to change.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the Forward Work
Programme be noted. By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that the Cabinet Forward Work Programme be noted.

CAR PARKING CHARGES

Consideration was given to the report which updated Cabinet on the latest position on the
economic impact on town centres caused by the coronavirus pandemic and to seek a Cabinet
steer on a further period of free car parking to support the local economy.

Cabinet was advised that many businesses within the County Borough had faced significant
challenges as a result of Covid-19 and the lockdown and/or trading restrictions that have
resulted. This included many town centre businesses and particularly the town centre
hospitality sector. In moving the report Cabinet welcomed the proposals for a Task and Finish
Group which would allow all political parties to contribute to any future proposals.

A further recommendation at 3.1.5 of the report was proposed in that Officers bring back a
report that sets out proposals to manage the interface between business and customer
parking at Twyn Car Park, Caerphilly and Blackwood High Street, Car Park having
consideration for the 12 month period of the decision and was seconded.

The Leader of Council emphasised that the proposals within the report were set within the
context of the COVID recovery framework which set out the next steps over the next twelve
months and was a continuation of the Councils COVID response with the continued aim of
supporting the recovery of Town Centres and was not a long term or permanent decision and
was time bound until September 2022. It was noted that one of the recommendations moved
was for a further report to come forward on the long-term future of town centre car parking
charges scheduled for the end of next summer. The Leader emphasised again that what was
under consideration today was not a permanent decision but an extension.

With the permission of the Leader, Councillor J.E. Fussell made representations to Cabinet in
relation to car parking in Caerphilly Town Centre. Councillor Fussell detailed the issues in
relation to the Twyn Car Park and the need to address the impact of town centre parking in
terms of the regeneration of specific areas of the town. The Member referenced previous
proposals in relation to the reconfiguration of car parking meters for limited free parking hours
to support the local shopping environment. The additional recommendation was welcomed
but the Member emphasised that this work needed to be timely in order to have any impact on
already struggling retailers and felt that consideration also had to be given to the impact of
traffic disbursement once the Twyn Car Park was full, particularly into retail loading bays
causing issues in terms supplier deliveries and subsequently congestion.

The Leader thanked Councillor Fussell for raising the key issues of concern and confirmed
that the report proposed in the addition recommendation would investigate these issues and
would be brought forward in a matter of weeks. The Chief Executive urged the Councillor to
take up the offer of an Officer/Cabinet Member meeting as part of the report development
process and Councillor Fussell welcomed the opportunity for such a meeting if it would inform

Page 2



the report to Cabinet. The Chief Executive also advised that this process would be mirrored
with the Blackwood High Street Car Park.

The Leader then referenced written representations that had been received from Councillor K.
Etheridge and Retailers from Blackwood Town Centre and noted the submission of a notice of
motion in relation to the abolition of car parking charges, which would be considered shortly
by Scrutiny and Council. She emphasised the importance that the review of car parking
charges be set alongside the COVID recovery framework and strategic town centre
regeneration. The important role that a cross-party task and finish group would play in
reviewing car parking was highlighted and the conclusion of its work would be the time to
consider any proposals including the possible abolition of charges but within a strategic car
park management framework.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the
recommendations in the report and the additional recommendation at 3.1.5 be approved. By
way of electronic voting this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: -

3.1.1 The extension of the period of free car parking in town centres for a further 12
months until 30" September 2022 be agreed.

3.1.2 The projected income shortfall of £660k be funded from the previously
approved Covid-19 Earmarked Reserve.

3.1.3 The Joint Scrutiny Committee Cross Party Task and Finish Group to undertake
a further review of town centre car parking changes in light of the effects of the
pandemic on the economy of our town centres.

3.1.4 Residents’ season ticket only use of the three car parks in Blackwood (Gordon
Road, Libanus and Highland Terrace) be removed for the duration of the free
parking.

3.1.5 Officers bring back a report that sets out proposals to manage the interface
between business and customer parking at Twyn Car Park, Caerphilly and
Blackwood High Street Car Park having consideration for the 12 month period
of this decision.

STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK FOR RECOVERY - PROGRESS

Consideration was given to the report which sought to update Cabinet on the progress made
against the Strategic Recovery Framework agreed in September 2020 and to adopt some
measures of success that will enable future progress to be assessed.

Cabinet was asked to note that the Covid 19 pandemic had provided an unprecedented set of
challenges to the Council and the Communities of Caerphilly since March 2020. During this
period the Council had focused on decisions and interventions designed to protect people and
places. In September 2020, the Strategic Recovery Framework was adopted and provided an
overarching framework through which the Council and its communities could work together to
bring about a successful recovery. Now twelve months on, the Council and its Communities
were still operating to a large extent in response to the pandemic. Some aspects of recovery
had been possible, and the report provided an update on the progress over the last year.

The Leader expressed her admiration and pride in the way in which Council Staff had
responded to pandemic, adapting to new ways of working and going above and beyond to
deliver services to communities. As the Council transitions into a new normal she saw this as

Page 3



an opportune time to pause and reflect on the tremendous effort made across every
directorate. Cabinet joined the Leader and placed on record their thanks for the herculean
efforts of every member of staff.

The Corporate Director for Social Services and Housing provided an update in relation to his
Directorate. Cabinet noted that in June 2021, 2 Day Bases were re-opened on a phased
basis and further proposals to reshape day services were currently being processed.
Montclaire had remained open and provided respite care for adults and children with a
disability during the pandemic albeit at a reduced capacity and since then other facilities were
coming back in to use as detailed in 5.4.3 of the report.

In terms of Housing it was noted that non-emergency repairs, also suspended during the
pandemic, were now back up and running as detailed in section 5.44 of the report with staff
working hard to clear the backlog. Interms of WHQS it was confirmed that works were in line
to meeting the 2021 deadline.

Cabinet were referred to Section 5.7.1 of the report and the Caerphilly Cares initiative and
advised that the programme was going from strength to strength and making a real impact in
the community. The Corporate Director updated Cabinet on the development of a Universal
Gateway bringing access to services into a more holistic model, which would include partners
in the 3" Sector and community-based initiatives. It was noted that Caerphilly Cares had now
been included in the self-isolation grant application to provide wider support. Referrals were
also being received from Council Tax and Housing Benefit and between April-June £625k of
additional income had been gained for residents.

The Corporate Director for Economy and Environment provided an update in relation to his
Directorate and he expressed his admiration for the way in which staff had stepped up during
the pandemic particularly when taking into account that services were still recovering from the
impact of Storm Dennis when the pandemic hit.

Front line services such as waste-collection continued seamlessly throughout the pandemic,
redeployed Leisure Staff had provided vital support to the mass vaccination centre and the
BuddyScheme. Public Protection Staff had worked 12-13-hour days during the height of the
pandemic assisting the Aneriun Bevan Health Board. Trading Standards and Licensing
colleagues had undertaken an immense amount of work to ensure compliance with COVID
regulations and assisting business and the registrars service had worked tirelessly in very
difficult circumstances throughout the pamdemic It was also noted that planning staff had
implemented a virtual programme of planning committee meetings and had worked against a
backdrop of circa 50% increase in planning applications. In addition regeneration staff had
worked tirelessly with colleagues in corporate finance to process Welsh Government business
support grants .The Corporate Director was humbled by the how staff had responded and
adapted and placed on record his sincere thanks to them all.

The Chief Executive provided an update on behalf of the Corporate Director for Education and
Corporate Services and expressed how overwhelmed she was by the astonishing depth and
breadth of work undertaken.

The phenomenal work of schools was detailed, first as Child Care Hubs for Key Workers, then
remote working and finally re-opening despite immense challenges. The level of teamwork
this required, and the support given by the Chief Education Officer had been recognised by
Wales Audit Office. Free School Meals services via an army of volunteers had delivered
healthy fresh produce to the doors of 6500 pupils and had seen FSM take up increase from
68% to 98%.

The redeployment of staff to the Trace and Trace service and the amazing work that they
continue to do there was highlighted and the Chief Executive recognised the outstanding work
of the Regeneration Team in turning around £55m in grant funding and £5m in other grant
schemes.

Page 4



The Chief Executive expressed her thanks not only to the staff but to the Cabinet and the
Corporate Management Team who had worked so closely together in difficult circumstances
providing purposeful and honest leadership during an unprecedented period of time and now
moving forward into another winter and with COVID still very present there would be more
challenges to come. The fact that Caerphilly County Borough Council had been nominated
for several prestigious awards was a testament to the all the hard work and commitment over
the last 18 months and she expressed her pride in Team Caerphilly.

Clarification was sought as to how the proposed measures would ensure that the Council was
progressing in the best way possible. Cabinet was advised that the measures proposed were
a starting off point and would be informed by citizen engagement and satisfaction and would
evolve and develop as recovery work progressed.

Cabinet Members echoed and endorsed the comments made and the exceptional work done
by so many and placed on record special thanks to Youth Services and their work with
vulnerable young people, Teachers, Catering Services and made particularly reference to
Carers in Residential and Home Care Services who had worked tirelessly at the very front of
service provision. It was hoped that the report would help provide the public with a better
understanding of the breadth of services provided by the Council and those that had worked
so hard throughout the pandemic to provide them.

The Chief Executive re-assured Cabinet that staff wellbeing was paramount, and support was
available for anyone struggling, the Corporate Management Team were well aware of the toll
that the last 18 months had taken and were ‘wrapping their arms around’ those that had
worked so tirelessly.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation
in the report be approved. By way of electronic voting this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: -

a. The progress made against the Strategic Recovery Framework for Caerphilly in the
last twelve months be noted.

b. The proposed measured of success for monitoring progress as set out in
paragraph 5.9 of the report be agreed.

MANAGING BUILDING AND SERVICE RISK AT ALERT LEVEL ZERO

Consideration was given to the report which sought Cabinet endorsement for an evidence-
based risk model to be adopted as a basis for undertaking Council building assessment in a
consistent and methodical manner, while also enabling the different risk factors and therefore
overall risk, at individual settings to be considered.

Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation
in the report be approved. By way of electronic voting this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s: -

1. the Hierarchy of Controls Template set out in Appendix 1 as the mechanism by
which the reintroduction of in person services can be assessed be endorsed.

2. The planning for the reopening of Reception and Customer Services at Ty Penallta
can now begin in accordance with the controls set out in Appendix 2 under the
elimination and substitution controls be agreed.

3. Relevant Heads of Service, in consultation with the appropriate Cabinet Member,

Page 5



assess all remaining Council buildings currently closed to the public using the
template at Appendix 1.

4. The receipt of a supplementary report at its meeting of the 29" September 2021
that sets out which of those council buildings should now be reopened and under
what conditions and controls be agreed.

5. Cabinet to receive reports that outline any further changes that need to be made
should the guidance or risk level change again.

The meeting closed at 11.50am

Approved and signed as a correct record subject to any corrections made at the meeting held
on 15th September 2021.

CHAIR

Page 6



Cabinet FWP —from 15.09.21.

15/09/2021 | Regeneration Board - Project To recommend the allocation of up to £130,000 from the Kyte, Rhian; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned;
10:30 | Proposals Regeneration Project Board Development Fund towards two
recently endorsed and evaluated project proposals; (i) Risca —
Redevelopment of Strategic Town Centre site (Feasibility &
Master-planning); (ii) Bargoed Empty Property Enforcement
Action Plan.
15/09/2021 | Welsh Government Prospectus To seek Cabinet approval for the distribution of SHG (Social Roberts-Waite, Jane; Clir. Phipps, Lisa;
10:30 | and Social Housing Grant Housing Grant) and the Prospectus document requirement by
Programme Delivery Plan (PDP) | Welsh Government.
15/09/2021 | Staff Benefits Scheme To seek Cabinet approval of a new staff benefits and reward Donovan, Lynne; Cllr. Gordon, Colin J;
10:30 platform and further recognition of long service.
15/09/2021 | FREEDOM OF BOROUGH — To recommend to Cabinet that Council admit as Honorary Forbes-Thompson, Clir. Marsden, Philippa;
10:30 | Olympic Medallists Freeman of the Borough. Caerphilly County Borough athletes Cath;
who were successful in achieving medals at the Tokyo Olympics
U 2020.
QO
(@)
9]
-]
h 15/09/2021 | The Lawns, Rhymney cost (Exempt Item) Dallimore, Allan;/ Clir. Stenner, Eluned
10:30 | overrun report (Urgent Item) Williams, Mark S;
29/09/2021 | Workforce Development To seek Cabinet approval of the Workforce Development Donovan, Lynne; Cllr. Gordon, Colin J;
10:30 | Strategy Strategy 2021 - 24.
29/09/2021 | Well-Being Strategy 2021 - 24 To seek Cabinet approval of the Wellbeing Strategy 2021 - 24 Donovan, Lynne; Clir. Gordon, Colin J;
10:30 ¢
29/09/2021 | Montclaire Avenue - Culvert To seek Cabinet approval to fund the culvert repair. Street, Dave; ClIr. Phipps, Lisa;
10:30 | Report

7 epusby IX Iy wong



Cabinet FWP —from 15.09.21.

29/09/2021 | Car parking at Twyn Car Park and | To consider proposals to manage the interface between Williams, Mark S; Cllr. Pritchard, James;
10:30 | Blackwood High Street Car Park | business/visitor parking at Twyn Car Park, Caerphilly and
Blackwood High Street.
29/09/2021 | Supplementary report - To update Cabinet with a further report detailing proposals for Edmunds, Richard (Ed); | Cllr. Gordon, Colin J;
10:30 | Managing Service Risk at Alert the re-opening of key buildings
Level Zero
13/10/2021 | 21st Century Schools — Band B To provide Cabinet with an update on the progress of the 21st West, Andrea; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;
10:30 | Programme Update Century Schools Band B programme.- Phase 1 & 2. Richards, Sue;
13/10/2021 | Streetlighting Update To provide Cabinet with an interim update on the monitoring of | Lloyd, Marcus; Cllr. Pritchard, James;
10:30 the street lighting carbon reduction initiative outcomes.
13/10/2021 | New Respite Facilities To seek Cabinet approval to build two state of the art respite Jenkins, Gareth; Street, | Clir. Cook, Shayne;
10:30 facilities, one for adults and one for children in order to replace Dave;
;v existing facilities.
g 27/10/2021 | Corporate Performance To provide Cabinet with information and detailed analysis of Richards, Sue; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned;
D 10:30 | Assessments (CPA's) performance for the period 01/04/20 to 31/03/21 and forms
o0 part of the Council's self-assessment activity.
27/10/2021 | Local Housing Strategy To seek Cabinet approval for the acquisition of the former Roberts-Waite, Jane; ClIr. Phipps, Lisa;
10:30 Oakdale School site from the General Fund to the HRA and the
development of the site by Willmott Dixon on behalf of
Caerphilly Homes.
27/10/2021 | Oakdale Housing Development For Cabinet to consider the development options presented by Roberts-Waite, Jane; Clir. Phipps, Lisa;
10:30 Willmott Dixon on behalf of Caerphilly Homes, on the basis of

need and viability with regard to the site of the former Oakdale
Comprehensive School.




Cabinet FWP —from 15.09.21.

27/10/2021
10:30

Annual Performance Report and
Corporate Plan 2018-2023

For Cabinet to consider the Council's Annual Performance
Report which provides information and analysis of performance
against the six well-being objectives for the period 01/04/20 to
31/03/21.

Roberts, Ros; Richards,
Sue;

Cllr. Stenner, Eluned;

27/10/2021
10:30

The Principles of a Regional
approach to Employability
Programme

To consider a regional approach to the provision of employment
support programmes within the Cardiff Capital Region.

Kyte, Rhian;

Cllr. Marsden, Philippa;

6 obed




Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 10



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5

R\
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWIRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

CABINET - 15TH SEPTEMBER 2021

SUBJECT: REGENERATION BOARD - PROJECT PROPOSALS

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR ECONOMY AND
ENVIRONMENT

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To recommend the allocation of up to £130,000 from the Regeneration Project Board
Development Fund towards two recently endorsed and evaluated project proposals;
(i) Risca — Redevelopment of Strategic Town Centre site (Feasibility & Master-
planning); (ii) Bargoed Empty Property Enforcement Action Plan.

1.2 To note that a further £1.0M of development funding has been allocated to the
Regeneration Project Board.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 At the meeting on 30" May 2018, Cabinet agreed that a Regeneration Project Board
would be set up with a cross-party political representation of Councillors plus key
officers. This group is supported by a Regeneration Assessment Panel consisting of
officers from a range of service areas. An initial sum of £300,000 was allocated to the
Project Board.

2.2 The Regeneration Assessment Panel have met on numerous occasions to consider
the prioritised list of capital projects, which have been identified by the Board to move
to the Assessment Stage. Following subsequent Cabinet Approvals, since February
2019 numerous projects have been endorsed with financial assistance provided
(where necessary) from the Regeneration Project Board Development Funds.

2.3 During January 2019 Cabinet resolved to release £1.2m of reserves for the
Regeneration Board prioritised projects. This was supplemented in April 2021 when
the Cabinet resolved to allocate an additional £1m to the Development Fund budget.
Cabinet on 7 July 2021 resolved that a further £1.0m should be allocated to the
Board for prioritised capital regeneration projects. This decision was approved by Full
Council on 13 July 2021. This brings the total allocated Development Fund budget
to £3.5M.

Page 11



2.4

2.5

2.6

3.1

4.1

4.2

5.1

52

5.3

In December 2020 Cabinet resolved to allocate £50,000 seed money to the
Regeneration Board for 2020/21 to progress concepts and ideas under the ‘Licence
to Innovate’ Scheme. Due to the success of the initiative, Cabinet on 7 July approved
a proposal for a further £200k to be set aside for the scheme. The total funding
allocated to the Regeneration Project Board, including ‘Licence to Innovate’, is
therefore £3.75M.

This report seeks Cabinet approval for the allocation of £130,000 Regeneration
Development Funds towards two project proposals (i) Risca — Redevelopment of
Strategic Town Centre site (Feasibility & Master-planning); (ii) Bargoed Empty
Property Enforcement Action Plan.

The above request would leave an active overall Regeneration Development Fund of
circa £1.436M and a balance of £0.209M in the ‘Licence to Innovate’ Fund.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That Cabinet:

i) Agree that £130,000 of the Regeneration Project Board Development Fund be
allocated to progress two project proposals (i) Risca — Redevelopment of
Strategic Town Centre site (ii) Bargoed Empty Property Enforcement Action Plan

ii) Note that a further £1.0M funding has been allocated to the Regeneration Project
Board to bring forward strategic project development activities.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To progress feasibility and master-planning activities for an identified strategic
development site in Risca Town Centre, to facilitate future detailed design and
funding proposals.

To establish a budget to implement an empty property enforcement action plan in
respect of targeted premises requiring urgent remediation works, within Bargoed
Town Centre.

THE REPORT

On the 30" May 2018, Cabinet agreed that Council Officers convene a Regeneration
Project Board. The Terms of Reference of the Board were approved by Cabinet at
the same meeting.

At the subsequent June 2018 Board meeting a Project Prioritisation Toolkit was
approved for the Board to prioritise projects and this was subsequently agreed by
Council on 17" July 2018. A Regeneration Assessment Panel has been set up to
assess each of the projects using this toolkit. The Assessment Panel is an internal
Officer panel from a wide range of Service Areas set up specifically to assess
prioritised strategic physical regeneration schemes.

The Regeneration Assessment Panel has met several times to consider a list of
previously prioritised capital projects These, for the most part, have been evaluated
and considered by the Regeneration Project Board before being presented to
Cabinet for endorsement and funding (where required) from the available

Page 12



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

511

Development Funds.

Initial funding of £300k was allocated to the Regeneration Board Development Fund
in 2018. In January 2019 Cabinet resolved to release £1.2m of reserves for
Regeneration Board Projects and then in April 2021 the cabinet resolved to allocate a
further £1.0M. This has been recently supplemented by an additional £1.0M in July
2021, bringing the Total Development Fund budget to £3.5M. This has allowed
additional projects to be considered for development support, prioritisation and
funding [Please refer to Appendix 1]

In December 2020 Cabinet approved the Council's Commercial and Investment
Strategy and resolved that a further £50,000 from the Education and Corporate
Services reserves be approved to progress ‘Licence to Innovate’ ideas via the
Regeneration Project Board. In July 2021 Cabinet approved proposals to set aside a
further £200,000 to the ‘Licence to Innovate’ scheme. All ‘Licence to Innovate’ project
ideas are subject to a Panel Assessment to determine their eligibility prior to their
presentation to the Regeneration Board.

At the Regeneration Board Meeting held on 27 July 2021 a further tranche of
schemes was considered by the Board. A summary of each project and the
Regeneration Project Board’s recommendations are set out below.

(A): RISCA — “THE BIRDS SITE” — RE-DEVELOPMENT OF STRATEGIC TOWN
CENTRE — FEASIBILITY AND MASTERPLANNING
= Total Project Cost Estimate (£): £30,000

» Funding Secured £0

= Request for funding from Regeneration Project Board: £30,000

Risca is a Principal Town within the Council’s Adopted Local Development Plan and
plays an important sub-regional role in relation to shopping, employment, leisure and
tourism.

Risca is ideally located to benefit from its strategic and geographical prominence
within the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal and its principal economic driver, the
Valleys Metro. Risca Town Centre is also a short distance from the Crumlin Arm of
the Monmouthshire and Brecon Canal and Cwmcarn Forest attractions. Both the
Canal and Cwmcarn Forest are recognised as key strategic economic and tourism
drivers within the South East region.

The Council’s Regeneration and Planning Service recognise the significant potential
for Risca to benefit from these emerging regional economic and investment priorities
through the creation of a sustainable “investment corridor” linking Risca, Cwmcarn
and their adjacent communities.

The proposed project is located at land at the rear of 139-153 Commercial Street,
Risca. The development is directly at the southern gateway of the Town Centre and
within the main commercial core of the Town. It is a visually prominent brownfield site
in joint ownership between the Council and the Birds Group of Companies.

Cabinet of 19" May 2021 considered project proposals for the new UK Government

Funding Programmes, including the Levelling Up Fund. The endorsed project
pipeline list included a suite of three interlinked projects for the Islwyn Constituency,

Page 13



5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

comprising Cwmcarn Visitor Attractions, Monmouthshire & Brecon Canal
Enhancements and the Redevelopment of Risca as a Strategic Town Centre. An
ambitious mixed-use development, comprising commercial, retail and leisure use is
proposed for the site.

Funding from the Regeneration Board has been requested to commission a
comprehensive feasibility study for the development area. The funding will support
the Council’s long- term Place Making plans for Risca as a Strategic Town Centre
and its goal to consolidate the area as a regionally important visitor destination. The
study will specifically focus on the re-development of the land at the rear of
Commercial Street, Risca and help inform the Council’s proposed bid to the Levelling
Up Fund in 2022.

The contribution from the Regeneration Board will match a complementary bid to
Welsh Government’s Transforming Towns programme for £45,000 revenue funding
towards the development of a wider Place-Making Plan for Risca town as an integral
part of the development of the Newbridge to Risca Corridor Masterplan.

RPB Decision: Project Approved. It was agreed that £30,000 be allocated
towards the project.

(B): BARGOED TOWN CENTRE — EMPTY PROPERTY ENFORCEMENT ACTION
PLAN

= Total Project Cost Estimate (£): £100,000
= External Funding Secured £0

= Current Request for funding: £100,000

Funding is requested to enable Officers to establish an enforcement budget to
undertake urgent remedial works on dilapidated, empty and underutilised properties
within Bargoed Town Centre.

The town centre is currently experiencing high vacancy rates on several prominent
retail/commercial properties. Officers from Regeneration and Planning are developing
an Enforcement Action Plan to address the issues relating to the empty properties,
including proactive engagement with property owners/landlords to ensure the
necessary improvement works are undertaken in a timely manner. The Council will
seek to use its authorised powers to serve notice on property owners to undertake
the works.

It is hoped that most of the issues will be addressed by the individual property
owners/landlords at the request of the Council. However, in the event of landlords
failing to act or non-compliance, the Council will use its powers to undertake the
improvement works in default. The Council will register a legal charge and restriction
on these properties.

The improvement works undertaken as part of the Enforcement Action Plan will
deliver a series of economic benefits, including (i) bringing the empty properties up to
the necessary standard to attract potential tenants; (ii) contribute to a thriving and
visually attractive town centre environment that is well placed to attract future jobs
and investment.

Page 14



5.18 The funding will allow a rolling programme of action to be undertaken on property
owners in the event of non-compliance with Enforcement Notices. The average
default works cost has been estimated at £10,000 per property. Funding support will
enable remedial works to be undertaken on approximately 10 properties.

5.19 Funding from the Regeneration Project Board will complement additional in-principle
financial support of £250,000 received from Welsh Government towards a series of
wider town centre interventions for Bargoed, including a third party property grant
improvement scheme for local businesses and property acquisition.

RPB Decision: Project Approved. It was agreed that £100,000 be allocated
towards the Empty Property Enforcement Action Plan

5.20 If Cabinet are minded to approve the recommendations contained in the Report the
residual funding available to the Regeneration Project Board is:

o Regeneration Development Fund £1,436,800.00

e License to Innovate Fund £209,311.00

6. ASSUMPTIONS

6.1 This report assumes that the identified projects, once supported by Cabinet, will be
developed further and where applicable implemented, with assistance from
appropriate sourced and secured external funding.

7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1 The recommendations contained in the report have a neutral overall impact, however
schemes supported through the board will all have varying impacts and will all be
subject of full lIA.

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 An overall project Development Fund of £3.5m has been previously approved to
allow a project team of officers to develop projects ready for implementation when
funding becomes available.

8.2 Development Funds of £1,933,200 have previously been approved and allocated to
projects. If the current requests of £130,000 contained in this Report are approved,
then £1,436,800 remains from the total budget allocation for funding future projects.

8.3 A Licence to Innovate budget of £250,000 has previously been approved, of which
£40,689 has now been allocated by the Regeneration Board. This leaves a residual
balance of £209,311.

9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There will be a requirement for Officers from Regeneration & Planning,
Transportation & Infrastructure, Corporate Policy, Housing and Corporate Services
Divisions within the Authority to dedicate human resources to the project activities
outlined in order to progress them, the level of which depends on the status of each
project. Otherwise, there are no personnel implications arising from this report.

Page 15



10. CONSULTATIONS

10.1 Consultees comments have been incorporated into the Report.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

11.2 The Local Government Acts 1998 and 2003.

11.3 Town and Country Planning Act 1990

Author:

Consultees:

Appendices:

Appendix 1

Glenn Cooper, Principal Regeneration Project Officer

CliIr Eluned Stenner, Cabinet Member for Performance, Economy & Enterprise
(and Chair of the Regeneration Project Board)

Mark S. Williams, Corporate Director for Economy & Environment

Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services & Section 151 Officer.

Marcus Lloyd, Head of Infrastructure

Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services/Monitoring Officer

Sue Richards, Head of Education Strategy & Finance (Interim Head of
Transformation)

Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services

Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration and Planning

Allan Dallimore, Regeneration Services Manager

Paul Hudson, Business, Enterprise & Renewal Team Manager

Local Ward Members (Bargoed)

Local Ward Members (Risca East & Risca West)

List of Approved Projects and Funding Allocations

Page 16



ANNEX 1. LIST OF APPROVED PROJECTS AND FUNDING ALLOCATIONS

CAPITAL PROJECT RPB
APPROVED
ALLOCATION
£
TRANCHE 1
LLANBRADACH PARK & RIDE £150,000
CAERPHILLY TRANSPORT INTERCHANGE £0
OAKDALE BUSINESS PARK £100,000
PARK LANE, CAERPHILLY £40,000
Sub Total Tranche 1 £290,000
TRANCHE 2
YSTRAD MYNACH PARK & RIDE £0
CWMCARN FOREST £75,000
PENTREBANE STREET, CAERPHILLY £37,500
Sub Total Tranche 2 £112,500
TRANCHE 3
MASTERPLAN FOR PUBLIC SECTOR LAND IN YSTRAD £0
MYNACH
TY DU NELSON (ADDITIONAL UNIT) £40,000
PENALLTA COLLIERY - FORMER POWERHALL £0
BUILDING
CAERPHILLY CASTLE - NEW COACH FACILITIES £50,000
Sub Total Tranche 3 £90,000
TRANCHE 4
LLANBRADACH PARK & RIDE (REVISIT) £200,000
YSTRAD MYNACH PARK & RIDE (REVISIT) £170,000
Sub Total Tranche 4 £370,000

TRANCHE 5

Page 17




ANNEX 1. LIST OF APPROVED PROJECTS AND FUNDING ALLOCATIONS

CAPITAL PROJECT RPB
APPROVED
ALLOCATION
£

TRI THEMATIC URBAN CENTRE FUNDS £20,000

CWM IFOR SOLAR FARM REQUEST £0

Sub Total Tranche 5 £20,000

TRANCHE 6

WG TRI TOWN CENTRE COVID 19 RESPONSE £142,700

WG TRI CAERPHILLY PLACE MAKING PLAN £126,000

OAKDALE BUSINESS PARK PLATEAU 1 £85,000

CAERPHILLY WORKMENS HALL & INSTITUTE £110,000

CWM IFOR SOLAR FARM £46,000

Sub Total Tranche 6 £509,700

TRANCHE 7

A468 / B4600 BEDWAS BRIDGE ROUNDABOUT £107,000

IMPROVEMENT

PEN MARCH WIND FARM - MEMORANDUM OF £0

UNDERSTANDING

LICENCE TO INNOVATE - COFFI VISTA £20,689

Sub Total Tranche 7 £127,689

TRANCHE 8

LICENCE TO INNOVATE - LLANCAIACH FAWR £10,000

LICENCE TO INNOVATE — COMMERCIAL TRAINING £10,000

CWM IFOR SOLAR FARM £434,000

Sub Total Tranche 8 £454,000

TRANCHE 9 SUBJECT TO CABINET APPROVAL

Page 18



ANNEX 1. LIST OF APPROVED PROJECTS AND FUNDING ALLOCATIONS

CAPITAL PROJECT RPB
APPROVED
ALLOCATION
£

BARGOED ENFORCEMENT ACTION PLAN £100,000

BIRDS SITE RISCA - DEVELOPMENT PLAN £30,000

Sub Total Tranche 9 £130,000

Page 19




Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 20



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6

R\
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWIRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

CABINET - 15TH SEPTEMBER 2021

SUBJECT: WELSH GOVERNMENT PROSPECTUS AND PROGRAMME
DEVELOPMENT PLAN (PDP)

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES AND HOUSING

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To seek the views and approval of Cabinet prior to the submission of the 2021/22
Programme Development Plan (PDP) and the Local Housing Market Assessment
Prospectus to Welsh Government.

1.2 To update Cabinet on the changes that have been made to the way in which the Welsh
Government’s Social Housing Grant is coordinated and allocated amongst partner
housing associations and Caerphilly Homes.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 In the Welsh Government’s ‘Programme for Government’ announced on the 15" June
2021, a commitment was made to deliver 20,000 low carbon homes for rent across Wales
during the next 5 years.

2.2  The provision of affordable homes in Wales has been traditionally funded via the Welsh
Government’s Social Housing Grant Programme which has been available as a source of
funding to housing associations in order to support their development programmes.

2.3 The schemes submitted by the housing associations have been collated into a document
known as the Programme Development Plan (PDP) which has been submitted annually
by the Council to Welsh Government and updated quarterly as a result of regular
meetings with representatives from the housing associations.

2.4 For the first time, local authorities who have retained their housing stock are able to apply
for Social Housing Grant from 2021/22 onwards.

2.5  To coincide with this change, Welsh Government have also introduced a series of new
requirements including the introduction of a new grant regime and viability model which
calculates the proportion of grant allowable on each scheme (known as the Standard
Viability Model (SVM); a new Programme Development Plan (PDP) format and a
requirement for a Local Housing Market Assessment (LMHA) Prospectus which sets out
the housing need and priorities in each local authority area based on the current LMHA.

2.6 This report summarises the previous process and provides information on the new

requirements introduced by Welsh Government which seek to enable and facilitate the
delivery of more affordable homes.

Page 21



3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

53

54

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the content of the report, PDP and draft LHMA Prospectus is approved by Cabinet
for submission to Welsh Government.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

Stock holding local authorities are now able to finance their development programmes in
the same way as housing associations and in January 2020, Cabinet gave a commitment
to deliver a minimum of 400 new affordable homes over a 5-year period.

The Programme for Government sets out an ambition by Welsh Government to deliver
20,000 low carbon homes for social rent across Wales.

The changes made by Welsh Government to the process for allocating Social Housing
Grant, coordinating the PDP and the new requirement for a LHMA Prospectus are
designed to bring momentum to the delivery of affordable homes throughout Wales and
will help facilitate the delivery of more new affordable homes in Caerphilly.

THE REPORT

Historically the provision of affordable homes in Wales has been funded by Welsh
Government through the Social Housing Grant programme. Each year local authorities
will receive an indicative allocation that housing associations zoned to develop in the
county borough are able to draw down from Welsh Government to part fund the cost of
development (typically at 58% grant rate for social rented accommodation and 25% for
shared ownership). The remainder of the costs for development are funded by the
housing associations through private finance.

The housing associations zoned to develop in the county borough are Pobl Group, Linc
Cymru, United Welsh Housing Association, Wales & West Housing and First Choice
Housing (who have an all Wales remit).

Between 2008 and 2019, £66.3m of Social Housing Grant was successfully secured
through Welsh Government’s Social Housing Grant programme, which has helped to
deliver 1,554 affordable homes throughout the county borough. When taking into
consideration the total amount of private finance accessed by the housing associations,
the total investment within the county borough during this period exceeded £115m.

Each year the council received a funding allocation from Welsh Government and worked
collaboratively with the zoned housing associations to identify potential sites for affordable
housing provision. This information was collated and contained within a document called
the Programme Development Plan (PDP). The PDP was set over a 3-year period, to
enable local authorities to plan developments, and was submitted to Welsh Government
on an annual basis, around May or June.

2
Page 22



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

511

New Funding Arrangements

In 2018, Welsh Government commissioned a review of the delivery of affordable housing.
The review was reported in 2019 in a report titled, ‘Independent Review of

Affordable Housing Supply’. The review put forward a series of recommendations to
improve the supply of affordable housing. The recommendations were summarised
under the following headings:

Understanding housing need;

Housing quality standards;

Modern methods of construction;

Rent policy;

Local authorities and enablers and builders;
Public sector land;

Financing affordable housing; and

Dowry and Major Repairs Allowance.

As a result of the review Welsh Government made a number of changes to the process
described in paragraphs 5.1 to 5.4. This included the creation of a single source of
funding to create a new flexible, long-term finance model, based on a regional rather than
a local authority basis. Local authorities are now able to build homes and access Welsh
Government funding in the same way that housing associations are permitted to do.

Local authorities will continue to coordinate the PDP. This function is undertaken by the
Principal Housing Strategy Officer within the Caerphilly Homes Strategy and
Development Team.

Transitional arrangements have been put into place to allow local authorities to access
funding from April 2021. However, from April 2022, local authorities will access funding
from the same funding source as housing associations. The Council has been provided
with an indicative allocation of £2.5m Social Housing Grant (SHG) for 2021/22 from
Welsh Government. The grant rate that the Council will apply for to part finance its new
build developments will be calculated by Welsh Government’s new Standard Viability
Model (SVM). The SVM will determine the level of funding that WG can contribute to
schemes with the shortfall being match funded via other sources, i.e. Housing Revenue
Account.

Housing Associations will continue to be awarded a 58% grant rate for schemes that draw
down construction grant in 2021/22. For schemes that draw down construction grant in
2022/23 and beyond, housing associations will also need to utilise the SVM to determine
the grant rate awarded.

It should be noted that decisions taken within departments can directly affect the ability of
schemes to come forward in accordance with the PDP spend profile. It is therefore
imperative that there is a whole ‘Team Caerphilly’ approach to facilitating the delivery of
new affordable housing schemes as delays could result in slippage in the programme and
the return of funding allocated to Caerphilly back to Welsh Government for distribution
elsewhere in Wales.

New Zoning Arrangements

Current arrangements for zoning are based on a local authority basis and there are 4
housing associations currently zoned to develop in the county borough. As noted in
paragraph 5.2, First Choice Housing Association have an all-Wales remit, so in reality the

3
Page 23



5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

number currently zoned is 5 including Wales and West Housing, Linc Cymru, Pobl Group
and United Welsh Housing Association. Under the new arrangements zoning will be on a
regional basis, so that any housing associations currently zoned to work in any of the SE

Wales local authority areas could develop new homes in the borough.

The change in arrangements could result in more housing associations looking to develop
in the county borough. The Council has already been approached by a previously non-
zoned housing association, Bronafon, who have aspirations to build on land located on
the periphery of the borough in those areas bordering Torfaen and Newport. Although the
council would not be opposed to working closely with other housing associations it is
mindful of the excellent relationships established with the existing housing associations
and the potential impact of the new arrangements on these relationships.

Advice from Welsh Government officials is that there should be a presumption that
previously non-zoned housing associations wanting to work in the borough should not be
prohibited from doing so. As a result, it is recommended that any housing association
wishing to work within the county borough is required to sign up to the principles
contained within the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) which was signed by the
Council, Pobl Group, Linc Cymru, United Welsh Housing Association and Wales & West
Housing in October 2020. The MOU sets out the principles by which the providers of
affordable homes within the county borough will work together and places a commitment
upon them to adhere to the Common Allocations Policy and Common Housing Register.

It should be noted that any non-zoned housing association who agrees to sign up to the
MOU could seek SHG funding via the Caerphilly PDP.

Local Housing Market Assessment Prospectus

The Local Housing Market Assessment (LHMA) provides an evidence base which
underpins decision making in relation to the provision of housing and related services.
Under existing arrangements, the LHMA is produced by local authorities on a biennial
basis. Following the affordable housing review, Welsh Government has established an
expert working group to revise the existing LHMA process. The council is represented on
this group by the Principal Housing Strategy Officer. The work of this group has,
however, been delayed several months due to the pandemic. As a result of this delay
and timescales imposed on the completion of a new LHMA to inform the 2" Replacement
Local Development Plan, officers propose undertaking a new LHMA using the existing
process. The new process will be used when the LHMA is reviewed (expected 2024).

In addition to providing Welsh Government with a copy of the PDP by 22" June 2021,
local authorities are now required to provide Welsh Government with a new document
called a LHMA Prospectus. The Prospectus is in many respects an executive summary
of the key outputs of the LHMA. A template document has been provided to local
authorities by Welsh Government to enable them to complete this task. The Prospectus
will be used by Welsh Government to support funding applications for new affordable
housing developments. It can also be used by housing associations when looking to
identify potential sites and determine tenure mix.

Welsh Government officials notified local authorities in mid-May that the Prospectus must
be submitted by August 2021. Both the PDP and the Prospectus require Cabinet
approval before submission to Welsh Government. Officers have advised Welsh
Government that the document will not be tabled to Cabinet until September and that in
order to meet the August deadline a draft Prospectus, subject to approval, has been
provided in the interim. This arrangement was accepted by Welsh Government.

4
Page 24



5.18

5.19

5.20

521

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

Given the deadlines imposed by Welsh Government for the submission of a Prospectus,
the Council proposes using data from the existing LHMA, dated 2018. Once the new
LHMA is produced later this year the Prospectus will be revised in early 2022. The
revised Prospectus will be presented to Members before being submitted to Welsh
Government.

The Prospectus will be used by Welsh Government to ensure that new developments are
taking place in areas where there is a demonstrable need and that the tenure mix
proposed in those developments is coterminous with the need identified in the LHMA.
The draft Prospectus is included at Appendix 1.

2021/22 Programme Development Plan (PDP)

The Council was notified by Welsh Government in late May 2021 of the 3-year funding
allocation for the PDP commencing April 2021:

e Year1l-£10.14m for the housing associations and £2.54m for the council (E12.68m in
total);

e Year 2 - £12.68m for all housing associations and the council; and
Year 3 - £12.68m for all housing and associations the council.

The schemes being allocated funding over the next 3 years will deliver on the strategic
housing priorities of the Council. All these schemes were included in the main programme
or the reserve and potential list, with the exception of one scheme in Rhymney that has
been prioritised to meet a need for specialist accommodation, as identified by colleagues
in Social Services. A summary of the schemes to be funded is included at Appendix 3.

Should the Council not be able to spend its allocation in 2021/22 in full then the
unallocated funding will be redistributed to the housing associations working on Caerphilly
developments. Should no additional funding be required the unallocated funding will be
returned to Welsh Government for redistribution nationally.

Caerphilly Homes have included 4 schemes within the PDP including 1 which will be
included on the potential list and brought forward as the proposal progresses. The
following schemes have been included:

o St Catherine’s Church, Crosskeys — package deal brought forward by a local developer
to deliver 15, 1 & 2bedroom apartments.

e Ty Darran, Risca — proposal to create a minimum of 40 homes for older people as part
of an integrated health and wellbeing hub.

e Former Oakdale Comprehensive School, Oakdale — framework arrangement with
Willmott Dixon to deliver a maximum of 100 new homes as part of an eco-village
concept.

e Land at Heolddu Grove, Bargoed — proposal to develop up to 55 homes which is also
the subject of an application for funding to Cardiff Capital Region.

Each of the proposals noted above will be the subject of separate reports to Cabinet as
appropriate.

Whilst the figures included in the PDP will inevitably change, the current template

suggests a requirement of £10.72m SHG to support the delivery of new Council homes
over the next 3 years.

5
Page 25



5.27 A summary of the PDP tables is attached at Appendix 2. They show a potential £47.51m
spend on new affordable homes over the next 3 years, against an allocation of £38.03m.
Over planning is an accepted practice by Welsh Government and will allow the Council to
manage slippage within our own programme or for the Council and its partners to draw
down national slippage at year end, should any be made available by Welsh Government.

5.28 The PDP was submitted electronically to Welsh Government on 22" June 2021. The
table below provides a summary of funding allocated between the housing associations
and Caerphilly Homes:

Breakdown Q12021 | Q22021 Q3 2021 Q4 2021 2021 Total 2022 2023 Total

Annual Budget for RSLs £10,142,328 | £12,677,910 | £12,677,910 | £35,498,148
RSL Schemes Funding Allocated | £ - £1,926,352 | £2,091,175 | £6,124,801 | £10,142,328 | £ 9,799,903 | £10,771,437 | £30,713,668
RSL Grant Remaining £ - £ 2,878,007 | £ 1,906,473 | £ 4,784,480
Annual Budget for LA £ 2,535,582 £ 2,535,582
LA Schemes Funding Allocated | £ - £ - £ 195,000 | £2,091,950 | £ 2,286,950 | £ 2,878,007 | £ 5,552,647 | £10,717,604
LA Grant Remaining £ 248,632 |-£ 2,878,007 |-£ 5,552,647 |-£ 8,182,022

Conclusion

5.29 The report reflects the changes implemented by Welsh Government following the
Independent Review of Affordable Housing in Wales, 2019 and the commitment made in
the Programme for Government, June 2021.

5.30 The changes reflect an ambition to increase the number of low carbon affordable homes
available in Wales at scale and pace. The new Standard Viability Model will ensure that
Welsh Government’s investment in new homes is maximised as the grant rate will vary
according to the viability of each scheme.

5.31 Linked to the request to local authorities to provide a LHMA Prospectus, Welsh
Government will take a more active role in understanding local heed and ensuring that
developments seeking Social Housing Grant funding are designed to meet the need
evidenced in the Local Housing Market Assessment.

5.32 In summary, these changes, including the ability of local authorities to access Social
Housing Grant for the first time, are designed to assist housing associations and local
authorities bring forward development proposals in areas where there is a clear need, at
scale and pace.

6. ASSUMPTIONS

6.1 Assumptions made in this report include, that the developments highlighted in the PDP
will receive the level of grant indicated from Welsh Government, subject to Welsh
Government approval, and that schemes will be delivered on time and within budget and
that the grant will be drawn down by the relevant organisations in accordance with
schedule included in the PDP.

6.2 Welsh Government have assumed that the level of grant will remain the same throughout
the 3-year period.

7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1 The Integrated Impact Assessment (I1A) suggests that the PDP and Prospectus will have
a positive impact upon individuals throughout the county borough.

7.2 The delivery of more affordable homes as a direct result of the needs identified in the

6
Page 26



Prospectus and the funding identified in the PDP will help meet an ever increasing
requirement for good quality housing; help mitigate the challenges arising from climate
change, address fuel poverty, promote better health and wellbeing and, act as a catalyst
for economic recovery.

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 With the exception of the St Catherine’s Church, Crosskeys proposal, the Council led
schemes within the PDP have already been identified as a commitment within the
2021/2022 housing business plan submitted to Welsh Government on 31 March
2021. The funding of these schemes currently is assumed to be in the form of additional
borrowing from the HRA, largely due to the uncertainty of potential grant funding for new
build schemes at the point of submission.

8.2 The grant funding regime, using the new SVM model, will therefore reduce the borrowing
requirement for the HRA.

8.3 Additional borrowing was approved by Special Council on 20" February 2020 to finance
new build and the completion of WHQS.

9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are no personnel implications arising from the report.

10. CONSULTATIONS

10.1 The Prospectus has been circulated to partner Housing Associations and the report and
accompanying appendices to the consultee’s named below. All comments received have
been noted and incorporated within the report where appropriate.

10.2 Members of the Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee were presented with the
report on the 7" September 2021 and a verbal update and summary of the discussions
that took place will be provided to Cabinet on the 15" September.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  Local Government Act 2014, Housing Wales Act 2014

Author: Jane Roberts-Waite, Strategic Coordination Manager

(Email: roberj2@caerphilly.gov.uk , Tel: 01443 864340) &

Mark Jennings, Principal Housing Strategy Officer

(Email: jenniml@caerphilly.gov.uk, Tel: 01443 811380)
Consultees: Clir Lisa Phipps, Cabinet Member for Housing

Clir John Ridgewell, Chair of Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny

Cllr Mike Adams, Vice Chair of Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny
Dave Street, Corporate Director for Social Services and Housing
Richard (Ed) Edmunds, Corporate Director of Education & Corporate Services
Mark S Williams, Corporate Director of Communities

Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services and Section 151 Officer
Mark Williams, Interim Head of Property Services

Marcus Lloyd, Head of Infrastructure

Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration and Planning

Lesley Allen, Principal Group Accountant — Housing

7
Page 27


mailto:roberj2@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:jennim1@caerphilly.gov.uk

Fiona Wilkins, Public Sector Housing Manager
Kerry Denman, Housing Solutions Manager
Mark Noakes, Development Manager

Chris Boardman, Development Manager

Appendices:

Appendix 1 Draft Local Housing Market Prospectus 2021
Appendix 2  Summary of PDP Spending

Appendix 3  List of Potential Developments funded by the PDP
Appendix 4  Integrated Impact Assessment

8
Page 28



Appendix 1: Draft Local Housing Market Prospectus 2021

Caerphilly County Borough Council

Local Housing Market Assessment Prospectus

Version: June 2021

9
Page 29



Purpose of this document

The prospectus provides a summary of the housing need and demand in Caerphilly
county borough and outlines the strategic housing priorities of the Council to address
need and demand.

The prospectus is to be used by housing associations and the Council to ensure that
their proposed affordable housing developments align with the Council’s strategic
housing priorities and are located in the right places. Welsh Government will use the
prospectus to provide evidence to allow final decisions to be made about schemes which
will be included in Main and Reserve PDP programmes.

This prospectus is based on the 2018 Local Housing Market Assessment. A new LHMA
is currently being undertaken and this prospectus will be updated on approval of the new
LHMA, expected late 2021.

Housing associations are encouraged to speak with the Council at an early stage about
the details of any proposed development by emailing:
stratanddevelop@caerphilly.gov.uk

10
Page 30



Table of Contents

Section 1 — Strategic HOUSING PriOriti€s .....cccooieeeeieeeeeeeee e 1
Section 2 — Housing Need, Demand and PrioritieS.........c.uciiiiiiiiiieiiiiiii e 2
Section 3 — Programme Development Plan SChemes ..., 9
Section 4 — MoNItOriNg & GOVEIMANCE .....cciie i 10

Table of Figures

Table 2.1: Caerphilly HOUSING Market Ar€as ......cccoeeeeviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeiieee e e e e e 2
Table 2.2: Social HOUSING STOCK ...coooiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee 3
Table 2.3: Social Housing Requirement Inclusive of Turnover by Ward & Housing
Market Area, & by Property Type & Bedroom Count ..........cccceeeeeeieeeeniiiiiiiieeee e, 5
Table 2.4: Annual Requirement for LCHO by Ward & Housing Market Area & Bedroom
L0011 0 | SF SO 5
Table 2.5: Annual Requirement for Intermediate Rent by Ward & Housing Market Area
< =Y =T Lo Yo T o I o 1 U1 o | SRR 5

Page 31



SECTION 1 - STRATEGIC HOUSING PRIORITIES

11

1.2

The 2018 Local Housing Market Assessment identified a range of housing
priorities throughout the county borough. To address these priorities, the
Council works closely with its housing association partners and private
developers to build new affordable homes throughout the county borough.
From this year, the Council will also start to build new affordable homes,
thereby increasing the overall capacity to build new affordable housing.

The key strategic housing priorities of the Council for delivering affordable
housing in Caerphilly county borough are based on the outputs derived
primarily from the 2018 Local Housing Market Assessment and include:

1.

Increasing the provision of 1 bed, general needs accommodation to
reflect the high level of housing needs;

Increasing the range of accommaodation for older people and creating
opportunities for rightsizing;

Increasing the provision of accessible housing for people with a physical
disability;

Proving a range of supported accommodation to enable people to live as
independently as possible; and

Providing a range of move-on accommodation to enable people to

transition from temporary or supported accommodation into independent
living.

Page 32



SECTION 2 — HOUSING NEED, DEMAND AND PRIORITIES

The Housing Market

2.1 The 2018 Local Housing Market Assessment analysed housing need on a
ward and housing market area basis. Housing market areas are made of an
aggregation of wards, an approach consistent with the Local Housing Market
Assessment Guide (Welsh Government, 2006). There are 4 housing market
areas in the county borough as shown in the image below:

Table 2.1: Caerphilly Housing Market Areas

\ Market Areas

W Bara [ Caerphilly Basin
[ Heads of Ihe Valleys
[ Lower Islwyn
/}Ml [ Nerthern Cennectiens Corridor
—~ T \
“J—[ Y S,

> I o

'Pﬂr\ﬂbﬂ

[

N
N N
N
Darren Velley \ GCED 5
{
\ A A
N A
~ f B

7 vi ~
& s
S t

"‘ Bargaod ) ]
ﬂ\ / r\
ot "'\Biar:kmm ) ez ;

o {f 5 (( b

Cof Florest N
2

~ =L <

AT |
N A \Ha'\maﬂ r./f ! 4
\( ] | Y 2 Fotlafraith

- [ 7 ~

; 4 }

haison _J vsvad Wymacn (” 0 ~

/ ;i W amsyemmer

Bedwas, Trethomas and Macnen

P —
(/ . i o /_kj‘-\-.»/ rW\\J'L
)mehm ;Munan wa /J’ - \1_\~q

- -~ S Jares

T+t 5 Garn 3 hawial crota ddia 2077, AQ O0IZS3T2 © C own zoayriaht an: dadhase ag-is 2017, 25

2
Page 33



Social Housing Stock

2.2  The table below provides a breakdown of the existing social housing stock in
the county borough by landlord and bed count. It consists of general needs
and older persons housing.

2.3 Some new additions to the stock are not included in the table below. The
table will be updated later this year once the information has been provided by
the landlords.

Table 2.2: Social Housing Stock
1 2 3 4 5 Total

AELWYD 16 - - - - 16 0.11%

CADWYN 12 6 - - - 18 0.12%

CCBC 1,878 3,639 4,965 165 1 10,648  73.34%

CHARTER 246 421 309 18 - 994  6.85%

LINC 65 274 334 13 - 686  4.73%

CYMRU

UWHA 560 610 715 93 - 1,978 13.62%

WALES & 109 47 22 - - 178 1.23%

WEST

Grand 2,886 4,997 6,345 289 1 14,518

Total

19.88% 34.42% 43.70%  1.99% 0.01%
36.66% of the 1 bed accommodation is designated general needs. The
remainder is designated older persons.
Housing Need & Demand

2.4  The 2018 Local Housing Market Assessment showed a high requirement for 1
bed general needs accommodation throughout the county borough, plus a
small requirement for 4 bed general needs accommodation. It showed a nil
requirement overall for 2 and 3 bed general needs accommodation, although,
there were some wards in the borough where there was a small need for
these accommodation types.

2.5 The 2018 Local Housing Market Assessment showed a nil requirement overall
for older persons accommodation, although, there were some wards in the
borough where there was a need for older persons accommodation. Our
tenancy records show that we have a high percentage of elderly tenants living
in family accommodation, not registered to move, that could potentially benefit
from rightsizing, something which needs to be explored further if new homes
are going to be built for older people.

2.6 Numbers of people requiring accessible housing remain low, as expected.

We are working closely with the Occupational Therapist (Housing) to improve
the quality of the data, both in terms of the people and type of provision they
require. However, the housing requirements of people with a physical
disability are often complex and require assessment by the Occupational

3
Page 34



2.7

2.8

Therapist (Housing). Therefore, it would not be appropriate to provide a
simple list of units required. Consequently, the Council will liaise with the
Occupational Therapist (Housing) on all new development proposals for any
accessible housing requirements and advise the housing association
accordingly.

The majority of the requirement for intermediate housing consists of one bed
need, although, in some wards there is a requirement for 2, 3, and 4 bed
homes. However, an analysis of the rental market by ward showed that
intermediate renting was only required or viable in certain wards.
Consequently, the actual requirement for intermediate renting is less than the
2018 Local Housing Market Assessment identified (see table 2.5).

The three tables below show the need for affordable housing by housing

market area, tenure and bed count. A full breakdown by ward can be found
at: Caerphilly - Local Housing Market Assessment

4
Page 35


https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Housing/Local-housing-market-assessment

9¢ abed

Table 2.3: Social Housing Requirement Inclusive of Turnover by Ward & Housing Market Area, & by Property Type & Bedroom Count
4 bed Total

Wards 1 bed

AH
Heads of the Valleys 0
Northern Connections Corridor 4
Lower Islwyn -4

Caerphilly Basin
Caerphilly County Borough

Source: CCBC (LHMA 2018)

1 bed
GN

67
192
50
167
476

1 bed
SH

-33

2 bed
AH

A O O BB

10

2 bed
GN

-54
37
-15
30
-2

2 bed
SH

-28

3 be
AH

d

3 bed
GN

-75

Table 2.4: Annual Requirement for LCHO by Ward & Housing Market Area & Bedroom Count

Wards 1 bed
Heads of the Valleys 5.3
Northern Connections Corridor 18.9
Lower Islwyn 7.0
Caerphilly Basin 6.6
Caerphilly County Borough 37.8

Source: CCBC (LHMA 2018)

Table 2.5: Annual Requirement for Intermediate Rent by Ward & Housing Market Area & Bedroom Count

Wards 1 bed
Heads of the Valleys 1.9
Northern Connections Corridor 17.0
Lower Islwyn 1.4
Caerphilly Basin 20.7
Caerphilly County Borough 41.0

Source: CCBC (LHMA 2018)

2 bed
1.7

8.3
3.4
3.2
16.6

2 bed
0.1
5.2
2.1

104
17.8

3 bed
1.1

-0.9

0.1
-0.8
-0.5

3 bed
-0.2
1.0
1.5
-3.3
-1.0

4 bed
0.1

2.6
0.9
0.9
4.4

4 bed
0.0
0.2
0.0
1.0
1.2

5 bed
-0.3

-0.9
-0.4
-0.4
-1.9

5 bed
-0.1
-0.9
-0.1
-1.0
2.1

Total
7.8

28.0
11.0

9.5
56.3

Total
1.7
22.6
4.9
27.7
56.9

3 bed

SH

» O O O O

4 bed
AH

A R O R

13

4 bed
GN

w O U1 b

12

SH

O O O o o

-116
167
-12
130
169



2.9

The table below outlines the type of affordable housing provision required and
provides an indication of its relative level of priority. Unless stated otherwise
the provision is required throughout the county borough.

Type of provision

Priorities

General needs

See table 2.3 above for a full breakdown
of need. By far the highest priority is for
1 bed, general needs accommodation.

Older persons

See table 2.3 above for a full breakdown
of need. Our tenancy records show that
we have a high percentage of elderly
tenants living in family accommodation
that could potentially benefit from
rightsizing, something which needs to be
explored further if new homes are going
to be built for older people.

Extracare

This information is not contained in the
2018 Local Housing Market Assessment.
There are currently two extracare
schemes in the county borough. A third
scheme was recently redesignated by the
Council to sheltered accommodation.
There is currently no requirement for
additional extracare schemes in the
county borough.

Disabled people (accessible
housing)

See table 2.3 above for a full breakdown
of need. We are currently looking to
improve the quality of the data to
increase our knowledge on existing
provision and the requirement for new
provision. There is a small requirement
for full wheelchair accessible
accommodation and we follow advice
from the Occupational Therapist
(Housing) on accessible housing
requirement for new developments.

Homelessness Provision
(Temporary accommodation)

We are currently in the process of
assessing our requirements following
Covid-19.

Increasing the provision of temporary
accommodation for single people, in
smaller units or larger sites like that Of
Ty’r Fesen. Reducing the use of Bed and
Breakfast / HMO accommodation with
more self-contained style accommodation

6
Page 37




with support on site. Highest demand
area is the Caerphilly basin.

In terms of longer-term emergency
accommodation and move-on, our
priorities include rapid rehousing options
and an assessment centre.

Supported Housing/Specialist
Provision:

Learning Disabilities
Mental Health Difficulties
Domestic Violence
Ex-offenders

Drug & Substance Misuse
Young Vulnerable

This information is not contained in the
2018 Local Housing Market Assessment.
Evidence of need is currently provided by
colleagues in Social Services, Supporting
People and Homelessness as part of the
PDP process. Any needs identified are
taken into consideration when providing
support for new developments to come
forward. For further information people
contact the Strategy team.

Empty Properties

There are currently 1,642 (April 2021)
empty properties in the county borough.
The Council is in the progress of
producing an Empty Property Strategy,
which, once published, will set out the
Council’s priorities for returning back into
beneficial use.

Existing Dwellings

There are currently 79,924 domestic
properties on the Council Tax list:

e Owner-occupied — 69%
e Privately rented — 12%
e Social rented — 19%

Priorities for addressing the condition of
housing in the private sector are set out
in the Council’s Private Sector Housing
Renewal Strategy.

Priorities for addressing conditions in the
social sector are the responsibility of
each landlord. Nil dwellings were listed
for demolition in the 2018 Local Housing
Market Assessment.

Rural Housing

Helping to sustain communities is a key
priority of the affordable housing
development programme. No specific
priority was identified in the 2018 LHMA.

7
Page 38




Homebuy

The Council supports mixed tenure
developments. Providing a balanced mix
of tenures can help create sustainable
communities. Tables 2.4 and 2.5 show
the requirement for intermediate housing.

Mortgage Rescue

Applications for Mortgage Rescue are
coordinated via the Housing Solutions
team. Currently the requirement for
Mortgage Rescue is low. We will
continue to support Mortgage Rescue
Applications put forward by the Housing
Solution team, where there are no
suitable alternative options. Housing
associations are currently expected to
use recycled capital grant to fund
mortgage rescue.

Regeneration of Town Centres

The regeneration of town centres is
overseen by the Council’s Regeneration
team. The Council’s priorities for the
regeneration of town centres is set out in
the Regeneration Strategy —

A Foundation For Success English 7 aug
2018.indd (caerphilly.gov.uk)

2.10 The Council is in the process of developing a Housing Support Programme
Strategy that will set out the strategic direction for homelessness prevention
and housing related support. The strategy will also set out the Council’s key
priorities based on findings from a comprehensive needs assessment. This
section of the document will be updated once the strategy has been finalised.

8
Page 39



https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/A-Foundation-For-Success.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/A-Foundation-For-Success.aspx

SECTION 3 - PROGRAMME DEVELOPMENT PLAN SCHEMES

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The Council does not currently operate a matrix system to prioritise schemes
that will be included in the PDP for approval and sign off by Welsh
Government. However, given the move to regional zoning arrangements this
may be something which the Council considers implementing in the future.

Potential development opportunities put forward to the Council for support are
currently judged on a range of factors:

e Meeting strategic housing priorities of the Council, as set out in section 1;

¢ Aligns closely with identified housing needs, as set out in section 2;

e Alignment to other programmes such as the Integrated Care Fund or the
Innovative Housing Programme;

e The mix, design and layout of the proposed development;

¢ Deliverability of the proposed development both in terms of planning and
SAB requirements and Welsh Government timescales for drawing down
funding;

e Ensuring that the potential development does not adversely impact on the
existing social housing stock;

e Complements the national placemaking agenda and the Council’s
Wellbeing and Place Shaping Framework.

Housing associations are urged to enter into discussions with the Council
about potential developments at the earliest opportunity. The housing
association must submit a scheme form detailing their proposal and provide
any supplementary information the Council requires to make its decision. The
Council will notify the housing associations of its decision via email.

All housing associations seeking to access funding via the Affordable Housing
Programme will need to:

Signed up to the Memorandum of Understanding;

Regularly attend meeting of the Affordable Housing Partnership;

Signed up to the Common Housing Register and Common Allocation Policy; and
Agreed to cooperate with the Council in discharge of its statutory

homelessness function.

There is also an expectation from the Council that housing associations will
conduct themselves in good faith when seeking out new development
opportunities. The Council would not expect a housing association to act in a
way which increases the cost of development for another housing association,
e.g. by openly competing for land opportunities that would result in increased
land values.

The Council will accept ad hoc requests from housing associations for
specific/specialist accommodation providing that such requests clearly satisfy
the criteria set out in this prospectus. Request must, however, be made in
writing using the scheme form. The Council will notify the housing
associations of its decision via email.

9
Page 40



SECTION 4 — MONITORING & GOVERNANCE

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

The section sets out the Affordable Housing Programme monitoring and
governance arrangements.

The list below shows the types and frequency of the meetings where the
delivery of the Affordable Housing Programme is monitored:

e Ad hoc scheme meetings with individual housing associations or the
Council’s development team;

e Quarterly PDP meetings with individual housing associations and the
Council's development team;

e Quarterly joint PDP meetings with housing associations, the Council’s
development team and Welsh Government;

e Annual submission of the PDP to the Caerphilly Affordable Homes
Partnership;

e Annual submission to the PDP Council’s Housing Management Team; and

e Annual approval of the PDP by the Council’s Cabinet.

The PDP will be reviewed and updated on a quarterly basis. Housing
associations will be fully consulted on the contents of the PDP prior to its
submission to Welsh Government. They will also be provided with a copy of
the version submitted to Welsh Government.

Communication of the PDP and of any of the schemes contained within it may
be undertaken from time to time either by the housing associations or the
Council. Opportunities to promote the benefits of the schemes may be
discussed by the Caerphilly Affordable Housing Public Relations working

group.

The prospectus will be published by Welsh Government within the new Social
Housing Grant Framework guidance.

The prospectus was approved by Cabinet on XX/XX/2021.

10
Page 41



Appendix 2: Summary of PDP Key Tables

Breakdown Q12021 Q22021 | Q32021 | Q42021 | 2021Total 2022 2023 Total
Annual Budget for RSLs £10,142,328 | £12,677,910 | £12,677,910 | £35,498,148
RSL Schemes Funding Allocated | £ - | £1,926,352 | £2,091,175 | £6,124,801 | £10,142,328 | £ 9,799,903 | £10,771,437 | £30,713,668
RSL Grant Remaining £ - | £ 2,878,007 | £ 1,906,473 | £ 4,784,480
Annual Budget for LA £ 2,535,582 £ 2,535,582
LA Schemes Funding Allocated [£ - | - | £ 195,000 | £2,091,950 | £ 2,286,950 [ £ 2,878,007 | £ 5,552,647 | £10,717,604
LA Grant Remaining £ 248,632 |-£ 2,878,007 |-£ 5,552,647 |-£ 8,182,022
Reserve Schemes Grant Required
Reserve RSL 4,299,566
Reserve LA -
Total Reserve Schemes 4,299,566
Percentage of Reserves Against Main PDP Budget 11.30%
Total
Need LA RSL Percentage
Homes
General Needs 65 436 501 80.7%
Extra Care Older Persons 0 0 0 0.0%
Homebuy 0 0 0 0.0%
Mortgage Rescue 0 0 0 0.0%
Older Persons 40 5 45 7.2%
Shared Ownership 0 0 0 0.0%
Supported Housing Domestic Violence 0 0 0 0.0%
Supported Housing Drug & Substance Misuse 0 0 0 0.0%
Supported Housing Ex-Offenders 0 0 0 0.0%
Supported Housing Homelessness 0 0 0 0.0%
Supported Housing Learning Disabilities 0 5 5 0.8%
Supported Housing Mental Health 0 0 0 0.0%
Supported Housing Refugees 0 0 0 0.0%
Supported Housing Young Vulnerable 0 8 8 1.3%
Total 105 454 559 90.0%
Total
Tenure LA RSL Percentage
Homes

Tenure Neutral 0 0 0 0.0%
Social 80 287 367 0.0%
Intermediate Rent 0 0 0 0.0%
Homebuy 0 0 0 0.0%
Rent to Own 0 0 0 0.0%
Shared Ownership 25 167 192 0.0%
Total Homes 105 454 559 0.0%
Incl Wheelchair Accessible 2 0 2 0.0%

11
Page 42




12
Page 43



Appendix 3: Summary of Development Funded by the PDP

Organisation
First Choice
Pobl H&C
Pobl H&C
Linc Cymru
Linc Cymru
Linc Cymru
Linc Cymru
Linc Cymru
United Welsh
United Welsh
United Welsh
United Welsh
Caerphilly LA
Caerphilly LA
Caerphilly LA

Scheme Units
Learning Disability Scheme, Rhymney 5
Land at Gellideg Lane, Maesycwmmer 110
Chartist Garden Village 84
Former Police Station, Caerphilly 43
Winston Osbourne House, Caerphilly 8
Land at Newport Road, Pontymister 18
The Former Crown Inn, Bryn View, Pontllanfraith 14
Land at Syr Dafydd Avenue, Oakdale 16
Former Ambulance Station, Nelson 5
Wingfield Crescent, Llanbradach (Phase 2) 23
Former Windsor Colliery, Senghenydd 97
Bedwas Road, Caerphilly 31
Oakdale School site, Oakdale 50
Ty Darren, Risca 40
St Catherine’s Church, Crosskeys 15

13
Page 44

Total SHG
£ 556,107
£6,564,116
£4,774,087
£1,368,732
£ 400,000
£1,651,058
£1,406,707
£1,309,824
£ 662,463
£1,991,521
£6,270,768
£3,758,285
£4,019,675
£5,760,979
£ 936,950



Caerphilly County Borough Council - Integrated Impact Assessment

This integrated impact assessment (IlA) has been designed to help support the Council in making informed and effective decisions whilst ensuring compliance
with a range of relevant legislation, including:
» Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 » Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011
» Socio-economic Duty — Sections 1 to 3 of the Equality Act 2010 » Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
» Statutory Consultation v Doctrine of Legitimate Expectation and Gunning Principles

PLEASE NOTE: Section 3 Socio-economic Duty only needs to be completed if proposals are of a strategic nature or when reviewing previous strategic
decisions. See page 6 of the Preparing for the Commencement of the Socio-economic Duty Welsh Government Guidance.

1. Proposal Details

Lead Officer Head of Service Service Area & Department Date
@/Iark Jennings Vacant Post Strategy & Development, Caerphilly Homes 23/07/21
)

o

What is the proposal to be assessed? Provide brief details of the proposal and provide a link to any relevant report or documents.

The 2021 Local Housing Market Assessment (LHMA) Prospectus and the 2021/20 Programme Development Plan (PDP). Local Authorities are now required
to produce and submit a LHMA Prospectus to Welsh Government.

The purpose of the LHMA Prospectus is to:

e provide a clear and concise summary of the housing need and demand in the borough and succinctly identifies the Council’s housing priorities.
e explain the type of provision planned for delivery with Welsh Government Social Housing Grant in order to meet the Council’s housing priorities.

The PDP outlines the amount and type of affordable housing to be built in the borough using Welsh Government Social Housing Grant. The PDP is
submitted to Welsh Government on a quarterly basis, following updating by the Council.



https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf

2. Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011
(The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, and victimisation;

advance equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between different groups). Please note that an individual may have
more than one protected characteristic.

Does the proposal have any positive,
Protected Characteristics | negative or neutral impacts on the

If there are negative impacts how will | What evidence has been used to
these be mitigated? support this view?

protected characteristics and how?
Age (people of all ages) Positive impact. Application data collected via the
Common Housing Register.

The Council collects information on age
as part of the housing application form.
This information is fed into the LHMA
and PDP to influence the amount and
type of accommodation to be built.

Accommodation is provided to people
aged 16+. People apply for the housing

S-DU via the Common Housing Register, in
}% accordance with the criteria set out in
N the Common Allocation Policy. Some of
S the accommodation can be age specific,
e.g. older person’s housing for people
aged 55 or 60 yrs depending on the
landlord.
Disability (people with Positive impact. Application data collected via the
disabilities/ long term Common Housing Register.
conditions) The Council collects information on

disability as part of the housing
application form. This information is
fed into the LHMA and PDP to influence
the amount and type of accommodation
to be built.

Discussions take place with the
Occupational Therapist (Housing) and
colleagues in Social Services regarding



https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues

any specific requirements for
accommodation. This information helps
shapes the type of accommodation
provided on sites progresses through
the PDP and s106 process.

Gender Reassignment
(anybody who’s gender
identity or gender
expression is different to the
sex they were assigned at
birth)

Neutral impact.

Any specific need for rehousing would
be processed via the Common
Allocation Policy and not necessarily via
the LHMA Prospectus and PDP.

Protected Characteristics

Does the proposal have any positive,
negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

If there are negative impacts how will
these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to
support this view?

Marriage or Civil
Partnership (people who
e married or in a civil
Qartnership)
(O

D

Neutral impact.

This would not be a deciding factor
when determining the amount and type
of provision of new homes.

Application data collected via the
Common Housing Register.

ﬁegnancy and Maternity
(women who are pregnant
and/or on maternity leave)

Positive impact.

The Council collects information on
pregnancy and maternity as part of the
housing application form. This
information is fed into the LHMA and
PDP to influence the amount and type
of accommodation to be built.

Application data collected via the
Common Housing Register.

Race (people from black,
Asian and minority ethnic
communities and different
racial backgrounds)

Neutral impact.

The Council collects information on race
as part of the housing application form.

This is not currently a deciding factor
when determining the amount and type
of provision of new homes.

Application data collected via the
Common Housing Register.



https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues

Protected Characteristics

Does the proposal have any positive,
negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

If there are negative impacts how will
these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to
support this view?

Religion or Belief (people
with different religions and
beliefs including people
with no beliefs)

Neutral impact.

The Council collects information on
religion and belief as part of the housing
application form.

This would not be a deciding factor
when determining the amount and type
of provision of new homes.

Application data collected via the
Common Housing Register.

Sex (women and men, girls
and boys and those who
self-identify their gender)

7y abed

Neutral impact.

The Council collects information on sex
as part of the housing application form.

This would not be a deciding factor
when determining the amount and type
of provision of new homes.

Application data collected via the
Common Housing Register.

Gxxual Orientation
(lesbian, gay, bisexual,
heterosexual, other)

Neutral impact.

The Council collects information on
sexual orientation as part of the housing
application form.

This would not be a deciding factor
when determining the amount and type
of provision of new homes.

Application data collected via the
Common Housing Register.



https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues

3. Socio-economic Duty (Strategic Decisions Only)
(The Socio-economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key decision making. Socio-

economic disadvantage means living on a low income compared to others in Wales, with little or no accumulated wealth, leading to greater material

deprivation, restricting the ability to access basic goods and services)

Please consider these additional vulnerable groups and the impact your proposal may or may not have on them:

> Single parents and vulnerable families > Carers

> People with low literacy/numeracy > Armed Forces Community
> Pensioners > Students

> Looked after children > Single adult households

> Homeless people > People misusing substances

> People who have experienced the asylum system

> People of all ages leaving a care setting

> People living in the most deprived areas in Wales (WIMD)
> People involved in the criminal justice system

Socio-economic Disadvantage

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or
neutral impacts on the following and how?

If there are negative impacts how
will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been
used to support this view?

Low Income / Income Poverty
(cannot afford to maintain
regular payments such as bills,
«fgod, clothing, transport etc.)

61 obe

Positive impact.

The purpose of the LHMA Prospectus and PDP is
to identify the need and plan for the provision of
good quality, affordable housing, which are
typically let to people on low incomes.

In addition, the investment in building new homes
is utilised by the housing providers is to provide
opportunities in targeted recruitment and
training.

Data on income is collected
via the Common Housing
Register application process.
This data shows that the
majority of people accessing
social housing earn less than
the average income in
Caerphilly.

Low and/or No Wealth
(enough money to meet basic
living costs and pay bills but
have no savings to deal with
any unexpected spends and no
provisions for the future)

Positive impact.

The purpose of the LHMA Prospectus and PDP is
to identify the need and plan for the provision of
good quality, affordable housing, which are
typically let to people on low incomes.

In addition, the investment in building new homes
if utilised by the housing providers is to provide
opportunities in targeted recruitment and
training.

Socio-economic Disadvantage

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or

If there are negative impacts how

What evidence has been

5



http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx
http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx

neutral impacts on the following and how?

will these be mitigated?

used to support this view?

Material Deprivation (unable
to access basic goods and
services i.e. financial products
like life insurance,
repair/replace broken electrical
goods, warm home, hobbies
etc.)

Positive impact.

The purpose of the LHMA Prospectus and PDP is
to identify the need and plan for the provision of
good quality, affordable homes, which are
typically let to people on low incomes.

In addition, the investment in building new homes
is utilised by the housing providers is to provide
opportunities for social value and targeted
recruitment and training.

Area Deprivation (where you
live (rural areas), where you
work (accessibility of public
transport) Impact on the
_81vironment?

0G abe

Positive impact.

The purpose of the LHMA Prospectus and PDP is
to identify the need and plan for the provision of
new good quality, affordable homes, which are
typically let to people on low incomes.

In addition, the investment in building new homes
is utilised by the housing providers is to provide
opportunities for social value and targeted
recruitment and training.

Socio-economic Background
(social class i.e. parents,
education, employment and
income)

Positive impact.

The purpose of the LHMA Prospectus and PDP is
to identify the need and plan for the provision of
good quality, affordable homes, which are
typically let to people on low incomes.

In addition, the investment in building new homes
is utilised by the housing providers is to provide
opportunities for social value and targeted
recruitment and training.

The links between poverty
and poor housing are well
researched - The links
between housing and

poverty | JRF



https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/links-between-housing-and-poverty
https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/links-between-housing-and-poverty
https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/links-between-housing-and-poverty

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or

Socio-economic Disadvantage ) .
B neutral impacts on the following and how?

If there are negative impacts how
will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been
used to support this view?

Socio-economic Disadvantage | Positive impact.
(What cumulative impact will
the proposal have on people or | The purpose of the LHMA Prospectus and PDP is

groups because of their to identify the need and plan for the provision of
protected characteristic(s) or good quality, affordable housing, which are
vulnerability or because they typically let to people on low incomes.

are already disadvantaged)
In addition, the investment in building new homes
if utilised by the housing providers is to provide
opportunities in targeted recruitment and
training.

4. Corporate Plan — Council’s Well-being Objectives
(How does your proposal deliver against any/all of the Council’s Well-being Objectives? Which in turn support the national well-being goals for Wales as

autlined in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Are there any impacts (positive, negative or neutral? If there are negative impacts

now have these been mitigated?) Well-being Objectives

objective.

bjective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all | There have been many studies into the effects of homelessness and poor-quality
[WEN accommodation on the educational attainment of young people. Through the provision of good
quality, affordable housing, this policy will have a positive impact on the realisation of this

Objective 2 - Enabling employment Thousands of job opportunities are created each year in the construction industry. In addition,
the council and housing association partners all use social benefit clauses in their contracts to
provide job and training opportunities for local people. This policy will, therefore, have a
positive impact on the realisation of this objective.

sustainability of homes throughout the county
borough and provide advice, assistance or support to
help improve people’s well-being

Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and | This policy relates directly and positively to the realisation of this objective.



https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/Corporate_Plan_2018-2023.aspx
http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx

Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and Does not contribute directly to this objective. Although, the provision of new homes located in
sustainable transport system that increases sustainable communities will minimise any adverse impact on the environment. The impact,
opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the | therefore, is neutral.

adverse impact on the environment
Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports| Does not contribute directly to this objective. However, good quality, affordable housing
healthy lifestyle in accordance with the Sustainable | contributes to good health and wellbeing. The impact, therefore, is positive.
Development principle within the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent | The provision of a range of good quality, affordable housing contributes to enabling people to
and improve their well-being live independently and promotes well-being. The impact, therefore, is positive.

4a. Links to any other relevant Council Policy

(How does your proposal deliver against any other relevant Council Policy?)

1. The policy links directly to the realisation of the 4 strategic themes of A Foundation for Success 2018-2023’ - Regeneration Strategy for Caerphilly
County Borough by helping to create prosperous and cohesive communities, promoting the foundational economy, helps to create sustainable
communities and providing access to jobs, apprenticeships and training opportunities.

The provision of new homes contributes directly to the house building targets contained in the Local Development Plan (2010).

The benefits of providing new homes including the promotion of the foundational economy and improving health and wellbeing contributes directly
to the Wellbeing & Place Shaping Framework.

4. The provision of new homes and promotion of the foundational economy will contribute directly to aims set out in the Local Housing Strategy 2021-
26 (under development).

5. Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 — Equality Objective 2




5. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 — The Five Ways of Working (ICLIP)

(Also known as the sustainable development principles. The Act requires the Council to consider how any proposal improves the economic, social,

environmental and cultural well-being of Wales using the five ways of working as a baseline)

Ways of Working

How have you used the Sustainable Development Principles in forming the proposal?

Long Term Housing is a long-term asset. The provision of new homes, built to high energy efficient and climate resilient standards, will add to
the sustainability and wellbeing of the communities where these properties are located.

Prevention Additional new homes provides opportunities for people to live in good quality, affordable housing thereby reducing the need to live
in homes which do not meet their needs and aspirations and relieving homelessness.

Integration The Council works in partnership with Welsh Government, the ABUHB and housing associations to plan and deliver new homes to

T
&b
(O
@D
ol
w

4

meet the housing needs and priorities set out in the LHMA Prospectus. The LHMA Prospectus and PDP will help achieve the well-
being goals of the partner organisations. The links between good housing and good health are well reserached, therefore, it is
expected that the provision of new homes would have a positive impact on the health and wellbeing of the occupants, which would
help contribute to the objectives of the National Health Service.

Collaboration

ro

The Council works in partnership with Welsh Government, the ABUHB and housing associations to plan and deliver new homes to
meet the housing needs and priorities set out in the LHMA Prospectus.

Involvement

a0

Data taken from completed housing application forms is analysed to identify the range and type of housing needs in the borough.
This information is considered during the LHMA process and the priorities identified are based on this information. Discussions also
take place with the housing associations and other partners on the number and type of homes to be built.



https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/content/5-ways-working

6. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Well-being Goals

Does the proposal maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goal and how?

A Prosperous Wales

An innovative, productive and low carbon society which
recognises the limits of the global environment and
therefore uses resources efficiently and proportionately
(including acting on climate change); and which develops a
skilled and well-educated population in an economy which
generates wealth and provides employment opportunities,
allowing people to take advantage of the wealth generated|
through securing decent work

The homes provided by the council or housing association partners using Social Housing grant
will be built using zero carbon or near zero carbon principles, thereby minimising the impact
of development on the environment.

New house building provides the council with the opportunity to promote the foundational
economy by supporting local supply chains and through the creation of jobs, apprenticeships
and training opportunities.

A Resilient Wales

A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse

natural environment healthy functioning ecosystems that

support social, economic and ecological resilience and the
pacity to adapt to change (for climate change)

The homes provided by the council and housing association partners will be built using zero
carbon or near zero carbon principles, thereby minimising the impact of development on the
natural environment. An Environmental Impact Assessment may be required to be
completed as part of the planning process depending on the nature of the development.

QA Healthier Wales

society in which people’s physical and mental well-being
s maximised and in which choices and behaviours that
benefit future health are understood

There is a significant body of research which shows that poor quality housing is a wider
determinant of poor health. Providing good quality, affordable homes and the promotional
of the foundational economy will have a positive impact on health and wellbeing.

A More Equal Wales

A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or circumstances (including
their socio-economic background and circumstances)

There is a wide body of research which demonstrates the importance of the provision of
good quality, affordable housing. Building new homes will enable the council to promote the
foundational economy and to create jobs, apprenticeships and training opportunities, which
in turn will help to promote a more equal Wales. The analysis undertaken in the sections
above clearly supports the positive impact that the LHMA Prospectus and the PDP will have
in helping to create a more equal Wales.

A Wales of Cohesive Communities
Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities

Providing good quality, affordable homes will help to promote cohesive and sustainable
communities. The LHMA Prospectus promotes a place making approach to ensure new
developments have a positive impact on the wider community.

A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language
A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage
and the Welsh language, and which encourages people to
participate in the arts, and sports and recreation

It has been assessed that the LHMA Prospectus and PDP will have a neutral impact on the
Welsh Language. The LHMA Prospectus will be translated into Welsh.

A Globally Responsible Wales

The analysis provided in the sections above shows that the LHMA Prospectus and PDP will

10



https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies,-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act?lang=en-GB

A nation which, when doing anything to improve the
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of
Wales, takes account of whether doing such a thing may
make a positive contribution to global well-being

have a positive impact on the local economy and society and that any impact on the
environment will be minimised through the provision of good quality homes that meet high
efficiency standards.

7. Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and Welsh Language Standards
(The Welsh Language Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards require the Council to have ‘due regard’ for the positive or negative

impact a proposal may have on opportunities to use the Welsh language and ensuring the Welsh language is treated no less favourably than
the English language) Policy Making Standards - Good Practice Advice Document

Requirement

Does the proposal have any
positive, negative or neutral
impacts on the following and
how?

If there are negative impacts how
will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to
support this view?

e.g. the WESP, TAN20, LDP, Pupil
Level Annual School Census

Links with Welsh Government’s
Cymraeg 2050 Strategy and CCBC’s
Five Year Welsh Language Strategy

92017-2022 and the Language Profile
(O

Neutral impact.

The LHMA Propectus will be made
available in Welsh and will be
posted on the council’s website.

@D
¢pmpliance with the Welsh Language

@tandards.
Specifically, Standards 88 - 93

Neutral impact.

The LHMA Propectus will be made
available in Welsh and will be
posted on the council’s website.

Opportunities to promote the Welsh
language e.g. status, use of Welsh
language services, use of Welsh in
everyday life in work / community

Neutral impact.

The LHMA Propectus will be made
available in Welsh and will be
posted on the council’s website.
Welsh speakers are able to access
the housing service using their
preferred language.

Opportunities for persons to use the
Welsh language e.g. staff, residents
and visitors

Neutral impact.

The LHMA Propectus will be made
available in Welsh and will be

11



http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/getattachment/b33d6f35-d70e-4d8d-917d-cc0e4abe2624/Policy-Making-Standards-Advisory-Document.aspx
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Equalities/Welsh-Language-Strategy
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Equalities/Welsh-Language-Strategy
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh_Language_Profile_2016.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx

posted on the council’s website.
Welsh speakers are able to access
the housing service using their
preferred language.

Treating the Welsh language no less Neutral impact.
favourably than the English language
The Welsh language will be
treated no less favourably than
the English language.

The policy will be made available
in Welsh and will be posted on the
council’s website. Welsh speakers
are able to access the housing
service using their preferred
language.

7a. Having considered the impacts above, how has the proposal been developed so that there are positive effects, or increased positive effects on (a)

opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language, and b) treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language.

(Neutral impact. The LHMA Prospectus will be made available in Welsh and will be posted on the council’s website. Welsh speakers are able to access the
ousing service using their preferred language.

12



8. Data and Information

(What data or other evidence has been used to inform the development of the proposal? Evidence may include the outcome of previous consultations,

existing databases, pilot projects, review of customer complaints and compliments and or other service user feedback, national and regional data,

academic publications and consultants’ reports etc.)
Data/evidence
(Please provide link to report if appropriate)

Key relevant findings

How has the data/evidence informed this
proposal?

The 2018 LHMA analysed a range of data to
identify housing needs throughout the borough,
including data collected from the Common
Housing Register.

For a full list of the data please see the 2018
LHMA - Caerphilly - Local Housing Market
Assessment

Key findings are set out in section 2 on the LHMA
Prospectus.

The LHMA Prospectus is underpinned by the
2018 LHMA, which used a wide range of data to
identify housing needs throughout the borough.
Outputs from the 2018 LHMA area included
within the LHMA Prospectus. The strategic
priorities contained with the LHMA Prospectus
are based on outputs from the 2018 LHMA.

Were there any gaps identified in the evidence and data used to develop this proposal and how will these gaps be filled?

the equalities data collected on the housing application forms is reliant on the applicant providing this information. Following good practice this
gwformation is not a mandatory part of the housing application form. Therefore, there will be gaps in the data, which we are not able to fill. All we can do
(B encourage applicants to complete this data fully when filling out their housing application form.

ol
~

9. Consultation

(In some instances, there is a legal requirement to consult. In others, even where there is no legal obligation, there may be a legitimate expectation from

people that a consultation will take place. Where it has been determined that consultation is required, The Gunning Principles must be adhered to.
Consider the Consultation and Engagement Framework. Please note that this may need to be updated as the proposal develops and to strengthen the
assessment.

Briefly describe any recent or planned consultations paying particular attention to evidencing the Gunning Principles.

Housing association partners have been consulted on the contents of LHMA Prospectus and the developments contained within the PDP. Regular
meetings have been held with the housing associations to develop and finalise the PDP prior to its submission to Welsh Government. However, given the
nature of both documents it would not be appropriate to undertake public consultation and engagement exercises on their outputs, which have been
derived from a complex analysis of a wide range of data sources.

13



https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Housing/Local-housing-market-assessment
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Housing/Local-housing-market-assessment
https://www.consultationinstitute.org/the-gunning-principles-implications/
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx

10. Monitoring and Review

How will the implementation and the impact
of the proposal be monitored, including
implementation of any amendments?

The PDP is reviewed quarterly with housing association partners. Updates are then submitted to Welsh
Government. A new PDP is submitted to Welsh Government at the beginning of each financial year. The
LHMA Prospectus is based on the outputs of the LHMA, which is currently produced every two years.

What are the practical arrangements for
monitoring?

Quarterly meetings are held with housing association partners to review progress on the PDP.

How will the results of the monitoring be
used to develop future proposals?

The PDP is updated following each quarterly meeting.

When is the proposal due to be reviewed?

The PDP is updated quarterly and the LHMA Prospectus will be updated following completion to the
LHMA.

Who is responsible for ensuring this
happens?

The Strategy & Development team within Caerphilly Homes.

11. Recommendation and Reasoning

g Implement proposal with no amendments
@
(o) Implement proposal taking account of the mitigating actions outlined
Reject the proposal due to disproportionate impact on equality, poverty and socio-economic disadvantage
Have you contacted relevant officers for advice and guidance? Yes No

14



12. Reason(s) for Recommendation

(Provide below a summary of the Integrated Impact Assessment. This summary should be included in the “Summary of Integrated Impact Assessment”
section of the Corporate Report Template. The Integrated Impact Assessment should be published alongside the Report proposal).

The Council is required by Welsh Government to prepare a LHMA Prospectus and Programme Development Plan. The LHMA Prospectus is based on the
outputs of the 2018 LHMA and the PDP has been finalised following detailed discussions with housing association partners. When approved by Cabinet
the LHMA Prospectus will be made available in English and Welsh on the Council’s website.

The production of the LHMA Prospectus and PDP are based on a robust analysis of data derived from the 2018 LHMA. Given the nature of the
document’s consultation and engagement on their development has been limited to key stakeholders only.

Overall, the integrated impact assessment shows that the production of the LHMA Prospectus and PDP do not give rise to any potential negative impacts.
Most of the impacts identified where found to be positive. The PDP provision of social housing will have a significant positive impact on socio-economic
deprivation, by providing people with affordable homes to live and opportunities for targeted recruitment and training. The provision of good quality
homes also contributes to positive health and wellbeing outcomes.

13. Version Control

(The IIA should be used in the early stages of the proposal development process. The IIA can be strengthened as time progresses to help shape the
croposal. The Version Control section will act as an audit trail to evidence how the IIA has been developed over time)

(Yersi . . . . .
(:)rsnon Author Brief description of the amendments/update Revision Date
@ M Jennings Draft lIA to submission on committee report. 20/07/21
5 M Jennings I\/Iinor :.amendments following consultation with the Senior Policy Officer — 23/07/21
Equalities & Welsh Language

Integrated Impact Assessment Author

Name: Mark Jennings

Job Title: | Principal Housing Strategy Officer
Date: 26/04/21

Head of Service Approval

Name: Vacant Post

15



Job Title:

Chief Housing Officer

Signature:

Date:

09 abed

16




Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 7

R\
CAERPHILLY

OQUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
[ YNGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

CABINET - 15TH SEPTEMBER 2021

SUBJECT: PROVISION OF A STAFF BENEFIT AND RECOGNITION SCHEME
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE
SERVICES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To seek Cabinet approval of a new staff benefits and reward platform that will
support the forthcoming Wellbeing Strategy.

1.2 Cabinet are also asked to agree the proposal to further recognise long service.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 As part of its ongoing TeamCaerphilly Transformation Programme and as recognition
of our valued staff, a new staff benefits package can be introduced across the
Council.

2.2 The MyAdvantages platform, by Edenred, offers a free to use online benefits service,
accessed via the National Procurement Service framework, that makes a wide range
of employee benefits, savings, discounts and advice available to public service
employees.

2.3 The platform also enables local businesses across Caerphilly to promote their
businesses and offers directly to our employees and, in doing so, provides the
opportunity for our staff to access discounts while still ‘shopping local’.

24 Cabinet will be aware that twenty five years’ service with Caerphilly CBC and a
predecessor Authority is currently recognised. It is proposed that recognition of long
service is now extended to include forty years’ continuous Local Government service.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 That Cabinet:

1) Agree the implementation of the MyAdvantages platform by Edenred for

Caerphilly
2) Agree the proposal to recognise forty years’ continuous Local Government

Page 61



4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

55

5.6

Service.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

Employee wellbeing, including financial wellbeing, is critical for business
performance. A healthy workplace, that promotes a state of contentment, benefits
both employees and the organisation. These recommendations will assist us as an
employer to support and contribute further to our employees’ overall wellbeing.

THE REPORT

Throughout the pandemic staff from every corner of the organisation have
contributed significantly to the work of the Council and to the delivery of services
across our communities during some very difficult times.

The loyalty and commitment shown by staff has been exceptional and this report
details the introduction of a scheme that, in its own way, gives something back to
those that have contributed so much. The benefits scheme may also offer financial
support to those who have been affected financially by the pandemic or times of
austerity.

MyAdvantages

The Council already provides a number of staff benefit schemes to its employees
such as childcare vouchers, cycle to work and green car scheme. The
MyAdvantages platform by Edenred takes those initial benefits and adds to them a
range of other features that further assist our staff.

The MyAdvantages platform can be completely tailored to suit the Council and to
promote local businesses. The platform is accessed by the National Procurement
Service framework and there will not be a cost to the Council.

The platform allows the Council to tailor benefits to include:

Employee savings

Childcare vouchers

Cycle to Work

Reward & Recognition

Gym membership

Home technology & smartphone
Financial Wellbeing

Green Car

Payroll Giving

Health & Wellbeing

The Council currently offers the benefits listed below to employees, which would not
be compromised by the introduction of this portal:

Childcare vouchers (Salary Sacrifice Scheme)
Green car (Salary Sacrifice scheme)

Cycle to Work (Salary Sacrifice)

Discounted membership to CCBC Leisure Centres
Eyecare Voucher Scheme.

Page 62



5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

Any benefits related to gym or health club membership will be considered in
conjunction with relevant Priority Actions in the Council’'s Wellbeing Strategy.

The brochure attached at Appendix 1 provides details of the platform, which as
stated, can be tailored to suit the Council. Cabinet will note that there are three main
sections to the portal:

My Wellbeing
My Benefits
My Recognition

The My Wellbeing section contains a host of useful information to help employees
with everyday financial issues as well as providing access to charity and insurance
sites. There are tips on saving money, taking out a mortgage, searching for
insurance and lots more. All of the content, including videos and financial calculators
comes from the Money Advice Service.

The section also provides an effective way to boost the financial wellbeing of our
employees by offering the ability to access shopping discounts at hundreds of big-
brand online, high street and local retailers. With hundreds of ways to help make
shopping for goods and services a little bit cheaper, employees can save money on
many regular and one-off purchases.

Offers can be redeemed by eGift cards, reloadable cards, vouchers and online offers
and can be used in conjunction with any existing in store promotions. Offers are
accessible in store, over the phone, online or via mobile devices and Edenred’s
merchant team are constantly sourcing new retailers and competitive discount rates.
Councillors can also access the retail discounts.

The MyBenefits section allows the Council to add and remove a range of additional
benefits at any time to include Childcare vouchers, Cycle to Work scheme, Car
Benefit scheme, Home technology and Smart Phones, Gym Membership and Payroll
Giving.

MyRecognition is the third section of the platform. This module makes it simple to
reward employees and deliver recognition for a job well done. This module is
completely configurable to suit local approaches and can range from digital peer to
peer recognition to tailored rewards.

The MyAdvantages platform provides a range of benefits to employees and the
organisation. These are summarised as follows:

Benefits to our Employees Benefits to the Organisation

Personalised benefits package NI Savings

Tax and NI savings Enhanced employee value proposition

Savings on shopping Reduced administrative burden

Access to financial well-being tools Reward and recognition in one place
Improved employee engagement
Improved employee retention

MyAdvantages also comes with a first class user interface and a bespoke
communications programme designed to drive awareness and maximise its impact
across the organisation.

Page 63




5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

7.1

8.1

8.2

9.1

The platform also contains all relevant information including frequently asked
guestions, benefit in kind information, scheme documentation and links to the benefit
providers, ensuring that employees can make informed choices if considering any of
the benefits.

Long Service Award

The Council currently recognises twenty five years’ service with Caerphilly CBC and
a predecessor Authority i.e. Mid Glamorgan CC, Gwent CC, Islwyn BC, Rhymney
Valley DC, by giving employees a £250 gift voucher. This is paid for by the
employing service area. From 1% April 2021, the predecessor Authority is not
applicable.

It is also now recommended that we recognise 40 years’ continuous Local
Government Service by giving employees a £250 gift voucher, paid for by the
employing service area, offering them an invitation for afternoon tea with the Mayor,
Leader, Chief Executive and relevant Corporate Director and acknowledging the
achievement at a Council meeting.

Conclusion
The implementation of the MyAdvantages platform and the extension of the long
service award provides the Council with an opportunity to recognise the importance

of our employees and to offer access to financial benefits, which will support their
wellbeing.

ASSUMPTIONS

There are no assumptions made within this report.

SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The Integrated Impact Assessment indicates many neutral impacts, there are positive
impacts for our employees’ wellbeing and the community. The proposals also
support the principles of wellbeing as set out in the forthcoming Wellbeing Strategy
2021 - 24.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

EdenRed’s MyAdvantages online platform accessed via the National Procurement
Service Framework is free to use.

The recognition of forty years’ continuous Local Government service will be a cost to
an employing service of £250 for each qualifying employee. For information, the total
number of employees that could have reached 40 years’ Local Government Service
in 2021 is 12, which would be a total cost across the Council of £3,000.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no specific personnel implications associated with this report.

Page 64



10. CONSULTATIONS

10.1  All consultation responses have been reflected in this report.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1 Local Government Act 1972

Author:

Consultees:

Appendices:

Appendix 1
Appendix 2

Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services

ClIr. Philippa Marsden, Leader of the Council

ClIr. Colin Gordon, Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance

Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive

Corporate Management Team

Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer,

Steve Harris, Head of Corporate Finance/s.151 officer,

Leadership Team

Clir Gez Kirby, Chair of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee

Clir Brenda Miles, Vice Chair of Policy and resources Scrutiny Committee
Trade Unions

EdenRed MyAdvantages brochure
Integrated Impact Assessment

Page 65



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 66



Appendix 1

#EdenredConnects

£ = g

< .

<« Pousosumey
§§~!a§_

wAd [oBnmses |
f::..i_ﬂi__.__wiio

ueld [ejod;,

sadejuenpyy,
01 8wl

uoisieruep,,
1088049

wmutoomifn  Dwsaromww  suweain  souosn RIS

|

9A0] |IIm 3jdoad Jnoh wJojo|d
PJOMSJ PUD S)IyaUSQq 9Y L

sa3ejueAPYin
UOISI9IUBAIX,



2 Ynod'paJuapa

bulaqjlam PuUL Y)|oaH .
buInD) [joJhod «
JO) U33JY) «
bulaq|I9M |oULUL «
auoyd JJows 3 hbojouyra] SWOH .
diysijaquwsal\ WAL «
UoNiIuUbOI3Y 8 PJOMIY e«
WJOM ©O) 3]ph) .%

SJAYINOA SJOIPIYD »

Page

sbuinog ashojdw] «

:9pPN|OUl O} WIOD|d JNOA IO|ID) UDD NOA

"JIOMBWDI) ©DIAIBS JUBWSINDO0IY |[OUOIIDN 8yl
DIA OSSO0 WIOID|d SUlUO UD ‘,S8BDIUDAPY AW, S,paJusp] Yim sawwpnibold
uolIUB 0Dl PUD SjiyaUSQ JIsy} 8B8DUDW MOU UDD suolpsIUPBIO 10}08s 2l|Iand ||V

sadejuenpvyin
UOISIDUR|AI4,



€ YN"0d'paJuaps

JU9|0) JdO) JOJ JO)IS 9)0AId ay) Yjim 9)2dwod 0) )IjIqo ay] .

UOI)Uua)aJ PUDL Jusawabobus ashojdwsa panosdwj .« 5100) buISQIISM [DIPUDUY O} SSIJY

Qny auUo YybnoJsy) UoRIUbOI3I PUD PIOMIY e Ilq buiddoys

USPING SANOISIVIWED INP3Y o [ONUUD JIaY) UO Joah © 0OO'TS JOAO SADS »

uolisodoid anjoA ashojdws Jnoh asuoyu] . SBUINDS |N PUD XO) [ORUOISQNS 4O «

SOUIADS 95UDJINSU| [OUOHON JUDIKIUBIS « 9003100 5)Y3USQ JIdY) SSIIOUOSId

uonosiuobio Jnoh Joj s)yjauag @ saahojdwa Jnoh Joj s)iyauag

"20D|d 10 Wl UBAIb
AUD |0 paau Aayl siiyauaq ayl sse2200 ApoIinb pun Ajlduwis o) 8|qo aq ||IM seaAojdwa INOA
‘SSOUBIOMD BUIALUP SWWnIBOoId SUOIIDDIUNWIWOD &30dsaq PUD ‘@208 IUl J8SN SSO|D-ISI O YlIM

1D 81D A8yl 81| 1oy} JO 86DIS JDYM JSLHIDW OU - SPaau JIayl 0} A|lopXa sia10d joyl aboyond
siyouUaq aAlIsusyaidwod pup pasipuosiad D seaAo|duws INOA sBAID WIoD|d seBDIUDAPY AW 8yl

- sa8ejuenpVi,
UOISI9IUB|AA-

(s



p YN'0d'PaJulapPd

‘sjjouag BUISOOYD Usym

92I10YD paWlIoul Up a3pw upd sesAojldwa buunsua

sIopIACId SjlJBUSQ 8y} O} SYUI| PUD UOIDIUBWNDOP

awayos ‘s|ivlep (MIg) pupy ul lysuaq ‘suolisanb padso

Ajjuanbal) Buipnoul ‘UoILPWIOIUI JUDAS|SI || SUIDIUOD

wlojin|d 8y "wiop|d auljuo papupIg O UO ‘Bwoy b
1O MJOM WOl 858y} $$8000 UDD sesAo|ldw] “jjoyaq So>m

UO SSWIBYDS 9D1LD0S AIDIDS [0 JSISIUILIPD [IM Paluspd g,

o
©
‘wloip|d spyauaq aAIsUsyaIdwoD D SO SOBDIUDAPY AWOL

BuljuUsWaD ‘PapPN|DUl 8 0S| UDD Sliyauag Mau JO BullsIxa
it JBYL0 O} SUIT OMBWDI) 8y} J8pun sauo [DUOLIPPRD AUD

92IN0Ss Buld|ay SO ||om SO ‘Slipauaq UaIdLIS IN PUD XDJ
PasIUB0D8) JUBWUISAOD 8y} JO |0 8pIACID ||IIM palusp]

sadejuenpvyin
UOISIDUR|AI4,



3N°"0>"PaJU3PD

—
‘Buieg|iom™=
PUD UOIIUBODaI ‘pPIOMaY [0 10} wIoi|d a|buls 50\»%v
SeBDIUDAPY AW &30W A|pal o) Bulag|iopm AW Ol Syull puo ©
S|00} JH UMO INOA PPD UDD NOA "9DIAISS 8DIAPY ASUOW mED.
WO} SOUWOD - SIOLDIND|DD |DIDUDUL PUD SOBPIA Bulipn|oul
- JUBJUOD By} |V "2J0W $}O| pUL 22UpINSUIl 10} BUIyDIDas
‘abpbBow D NO Bupp) ‘Asuow BUIADS UO sdi} 810 a18y]

"SO}IS 92UDINSUl PUD AJUDYD O} SS90
soplanoid pup sansst [pIoupUl ADPAIBAS Ylim seaAojduws JINOA
djey 0} uolbWIOUI [NJBSN JO JSOY D SUIDIUOD Buleq|iom AW

BuieqiIaMan
SO|'144



9 }YN'0d'P3aJUSPD

"SO1DJ JUNODSIP SAlIIedWOD 1o3InuW

BULIBAIIBP 210 9M SBINSUS PUD SIB|IDI81 MBU
$©DIN0S WDS] JUDYDIBW INQ "SO8DIA8P 3|IqOW DIA
10 BUIlUO “‘euoyd By} JIBAO ‘810Js-Ul B|qISSeDID
210 PUD suoljowold 810is ul Bulisixe Aup Yiim
uoIDOUNIUOD Ul PBasN &Q UDD SJUNODSIP asay]

$I8JJO SUIUQ e
SISUDNOA e
SPJI0D S|QPPDO|SY e

SPIDD HIDS e

:SADM [DJISASS Ul PauIsapal 89 UDD SIaljO

o~

o

©

"ABUOW SADS O] s98A0|dWS INOA 10) ADM @E@O@c@P
puUD ASDS IS} O seplA0Id SBUIADS AW ‘pPoBYDL sub|d |[9ALI} BuUlliOXe
Byl 10 YDa] ISaln| ayl ‘s|pliuassa AlIDp a8yl uo SI 1l Jayiaym Iaylinyg
Aod s ajdoad IN0OA yolalls djay upd NOA ‘Bulpuads uo 8ADS O} SADM
1O spaJpuny Yim 1ng ‘sasu And aAIb 0} 8|qIssod aq SADM|D Jou Abw
1| "SI8jIDl8l DO PUD J88lls YbBiy ‘Buljuo pubnig-Biq Jo spaipuny o
sjUNODsIp Bbulddoys 0} $s8200 saaiojdwa INOA BUIAIb AQ Bulaq|jeom
[DIDUDUl [SOOQ O} ADM BAILD81JS UD SI8JJO 3|NPOoW SBUIADS AW 8y

BuleqloMan
S|4y



[ YN02"'P3aJuspP9d

SMOUYSPDOI/SIDUIgOM IOINDBY e

paoNpal

SI SSOUBIOMD BUISDBIDUI JO USPING SAILDILSIUILUPD INOA Bulunaw
‘SUCILDDIUNWIWIOD 0} sedA0|dwa || Ul }Jdo AjIogolb o) uoldo ay] e

I0BA By} JO sawl}l 8AlIsuadxa Jsow 8y} JO auo
10 8ADS s19sN djay 0} subiodwnd sOWSLIYD pUL ADPLL J00|g e

Jlomlau Jsupnd IDjal 9AIsUSXa INO ylim diysisupod
Ul SJUSAS Uoljowoid pup suoljlleduiod ‘sa|os Ysoyl JojnBay e

s1oulol MaU [|D JO) BsWWDIBOId BUWOD|OM |IDWT

auizobpw 8jALs8)l| Apa N

Page 73

SHAOO}
UOILDDIUNWIWIOD [DLBIP J|oys-ayl-}JO A|yluoWw puUD USaIBISAT e

SIOJOISIUILIPD IO) JSIISISMBU [IDUIS AJYIUOW e

$J2JJO PUD SIUNODSIP
1S210] 9y BUISDDOMOYS SI8SN aUUIBYDs O] SIowa I0|NBaY

:2pN|DUl [[IM BWWDIBOId UOIIDDIUNWWOD

INO A "SBUIADS JIay} SSILUIXOW 1J01S INOA d|ay Of SADM SAILDAOUUI
Uim dn awoD 0} Alssalalll JJOM WIDS} SUOIDDIUNUWWOD
pal2Ipap INQO “Juswabobus aspaloul djay o) swuwniboid
UOIDDIUNWIWIOD SAISUBYSIAWOD D YlIM SBUWO0D SBUIADS AW



| Y I0M 0O} 3|24 U] aspalIou|

1o} Bulaypd yjoq ‘s1apiaoid jo asoyd spupniq BuloAD Oy |
JOAO WO} &I D UO %8y 01 dn JO SBUIADS 210 818y "IOM
ybnouyl a3iq 9ai)-xp} o |ob 0] seaAo|dwa so|gpus awayos ay|
‘JJodsuply 8|gpuInisNs pub ajA1sall| Ayipay b ‘BuljdAD ajowold
O} JUBWIUIBAOS 8y} AQ paodNpPOILUl SUBYDS D SI JIOM O} 8|0AD
WJOM ©O) 9]ph)

‘PaluspP] 0O} JIBAO SiIaquBW JNOA pup swayds Bulsixa INOA
YDLIMS |[IIS UDD NOA INQ ‘8107 190400 Uiy UO SiUDIJUS MBU O}
BWBYDS SIBYDNOA 2I02P(IYD 8yl Paso|Dd jUsWIuIsA0s ay] ‘Abd
JI|yl wolj 1ybioags uaynl aiob sjuswApd J1ayl so SBUIADS [N pUuD
XD} AO[US PUD JUNODDD BUIUO JIBY} $SODDD UDD ABy] "sijouag
AW Buisn s1IaydNoA aI1oop|IyD J1ay) aboupw upnd seaAojdwg
SJOUYINOA JOdPNIYD

P@74

‘Juswebounw

BuloBuo pup youno| ‘dnias jnoybnoly} aousiiadxs yloows o
1O PBINSSD }Sa1 UDD NOA 0S “10}08S 21|Ignd YS|oM 24l Ylim A|8so|o
BupIom JO @ouUsladxs BAISUBIXS ALY Slaulipd sjjauaqg INO

2w} AUD |0 WO D|d sebpIUDAPY AW INOA O} sjljauaq
|[oUOIHIPPD JO 8bubl 8BNY D SA0WSI PUD PPD AlISDS UDD NOA

STTETIEY: P
UOIPP NN,



6 YN'0d'PaJUaPS

JoAojdwe
9y} O} |pIjNdU JSOD pub sn AQ paboupw-A||N} s, 4

‘JUsWSBUDLID sjiJauaq 921LIDS AID|DS JUSIUSAUOD

D ybnouy} |0 ‘Bunswns pup dH ‘o|ddy Jo
soyI| @y4 wol) sjonpold ABojouyoal swoy
a|gpJIsep-Alybly ‘1se1b| 8yt seahojdwa 18110
sauoyd ppws pup A6ojouys3] swoH

"(@2upINsuUl

O} SIOW WoJ}) 0D D Buluunl Jo asuadxs DIXd
PUD $3|SSPY 2y} 1NOgD ALIOM O} SADY |, UOP
ABy} puUD “I0D MaU pubiqg P Job seaAojdwo
awayos lyauag InD Bupnalg-punolb INO YA
Jousalb pup Jalspe 106 Isnl soy oo b Buluuny
Jyauag Jo)

"X0J Way} BUIADS

Aod J1eyl wouy Jybioags suoliouop Injnbal Buoul
AQ sebod BulsioipuNn} PUD SSILIDYD S4INOAD)
oyl poddns o) seaAojdws 1o} Aom aidwlis D

S,1| "SSo| @2A0|dWs $1SO0D UOIIPUOP YO0 sUpnawl
awiayos jaljal Xp| papoddns JUBWUIBAOD) SIY]L
buinip jjoshod



ot

YN"0>°'PaJuUaPd

J1aypn} ob saup|os

JIay} &3pW puUD ‘SeouDUl JIBY4 JO |0IJUO0D
P} sevAo|duws djay 04 9|9 8 [|IM NOA
‘921IDDS AID|OS DIA pajuawa|dul] "SUDO|
S|gPPIOHD ‘BINDSS PUD UOIDPIIOSUOD
1g9p ASDS ‘©2IAPD [DIDUDUL

PalSNI} O} $S8DDD sevAo|dwa aAID
bulaqjiam [opULUL

"alinbal Aayl Ajljigixay

pUD 8210YD a8y} seaAo|dws INOA 1a}jo
OM SON|D Y}|odaYy |810Y PUD $811USD aINSI9|
‘SUIDYD WAD JO JIOMIBU [puolibu B Buisn
‘'suoloNpap ||oJApd ybnolayl And Asyl
yoI1ym sdiysiaquiawl gnjo yijoay jonuun
PBIUNODSIP SO8A0|dWS SI8}JO XB|{WAD
x9|Jwhp)

‘[l0JADd uo Jopduwl pappL ou Bulupaw
‘sooAo|dwa AQ Ajloalip piod st swayos
SJUNODSIQ WAD AW 8yl "IOM 1O BA||

A8y} 8laym Jaiibwl OU o} paldlpnd a1
sooAo|dwa || s8INSUS SOIPNILS SSOUL PUD
$21JUSD aINsIv| ‘sgN|D Yipay Jo Jequinu
abID| 8y] "SWAB Q00’'E 18A0 1D SIUNODSIP
Bula}j0 BwWayds 8p02D JUNODSIP IO
POsDQ JOYDNOA D Sl SJUNODSIJ WAD AW
sjunodsiqQ why hpl

@Page 76

2o



IT YN'0>'PaJU3dPd

"9210YD lIvy} JO piomal sy} waspal o} Juaidioal

2y} 10} sdays sidwis 88y} pup ‘18pIo o} sdays a|dwis o8Iy}
AJUO §,218Y] "SADP 22UsBdXS PUD |SADI) ‘SPIDD LIS JUDLSUI
‘SISYDNOA ‘SPIDD |ID}B1 81045-9|BUIS PUD 810LS-I{|NW ‘SIOYDNOA
10 8bupJ sjuswIdwo) INO SISA0D JDY} USADSY UoljluboDal
PUD SPIOMBI Y "PassSpdINSUN SI 18O UO 8210YD ay]

‘sposu

PUD SIUDM UMO JIBY] SIINS Yydiym Bulyiawos 3o1d Ajpunjsul o)
way} Buimol|o ‘spupliq doy Oz | JOAO WO} SPIOMSI JO SBUDI_
oBNy D sUIDJUOD ©nNBOoIPIDD 8y "PIOD 1IHS |PLIBIP o pPioIF=

‘JoUYDNOA 1B Js|ID}al Uasoyd JIsy} JO8]es O} 9p0D9 :mE%

Buisn ‘onBo|piPD PIOMBI BUIUO 8y} Ojul BO| UPD m®®>o_QEm_m.a
'sooAo|dwa INOA O} 1DalIPp PalaAlap ‘|Iowd pasipuosiad

D Ul pappagquad anjpA AUD JO sBPO0DHd anssl Aldwis

"UOIJDAILOW
wNWILdo JO Juswow 8yl ul UoIliuboDal JaAlIBp puL ApoINb
sooAo|dwa piomal O NOA I0J ASDS |l DWW UoIIUBODay AW

UOIHUSO0D9Y 4,
YroeippAgqeupAySN;,



2T MN'0d'paJuapd

1SOO |[PUOHIPPL
up 1o wiop|d 8jAlsalIAW INOA O} PapPL Os|D 89
upo sawwpibold uolubooal Jead-ol-19ad |PLBIQ

poJsod 21D SISYDNOA PUD SPIDD |JIB =4
‘A|21DIPBWIWI SALLD SPIDD HIDHS [DHBIP — 9AI29Y &

aNnbBoIpIPD BAISUSIXS
SU WO PIDD HIDS [OHBIP 10 PID/18yonoA (i)
1o|I0}o1 pallayald sy} s}oa|as ooAo|dwa - PII9s

opode sooAo|dwa o} AljoauIp @
anbIuN JISY} PUD [I0WS S9AI9D8. 99A0|dwia — buld @ uoyuBoO8l JeAIIeP PUP ADd ‘MIASI - WIYUoD A
o
©
‘Wa3pas O] salp|dwal oy} Jo Buo N
35N JO S|IDWS JNOA pupIg ‘AjIoNPIAIPUL IO sjuaidioal a

J0 dnolb ay} 1o} sobpssow allUm - dsljouosiad

SOPODD By} JO BN|PA 8y} puD
(s) ewpou jusaidioal uolIubODal By} JI8juUd - 9)oaJ)

:J9pJo o)

UOIHUS0D9Y 4,
YyroelppAqeupAysNg,




€T YN'0d>'PaJuUaPd

"1O0JIUOD By} JO 8Jl| 8y} Joy ppoddns
BuUloB-UO PUL UCILLDIUNWWOD ‘UoliplusWa|dwl

2wBayos ay| oboubw ||IM OYMm “J1oBDUDN JUNODDY

PUD SAIIND9XT SUOILDDIUNWIWOYD) ‘JoBDUDW
109[01d O JO BUIISISUOD ‘LIS 0 SADY ||IM NOA

yoddns
JUSI]D PUL Juswabouow diysuonojay

"8JOW PUD SIODIUOD

‘2ouUpUl ‘seusnb |PoIUYDS] ‘Juswabpupw
JBPIO sjyauaq ‘sauinbus Jip1s seboubuw a1lusd
1ODJUOD palpoIpapP Vv "Alanb oyloads Jlay) 10}
uoldo a|gplINs SOW 8yl 108]8S UDD Aayl a1aym
‘aull suoyd pajpoipsp a|buls b puo djBy suljuo
‘'S, OV O} $58000 9ADY |IM S88A0|dWS INOA

S9JIAJOS JOWO)SN)

&

'S4V 91| S©DIAIBS SDIAPD IO
‘sjjouaq JayLo ajowold 0f pasn 8g UPD s|NPoW
,$92IN0saIAW, 2y *(s4s0D puoIippPL 0} 1oalgns)
sjuawalinbal INoA uo Bulipuadap ‘Jaylinj
PasILIOISND &g 0S| UL JI INg 0B0| JUuswppdap
JNOA YlIM pBpUDIg-0D g [IIM wiojin|d ay|

jo)yJod ojqosiwo)snd hjing

"S2IDUBIDe BulsI|oal pupD UOIDILSIUIPD
BulAjiiduilis ‘s uolonpap |joJAnd a|buls © O}ul
sijyouaq ayl Jo |0 apbaibbo paiusp] opowW
90 0} suoloNpPap AID|OS BYJ JO BN|DA By} PUD

$9210Y2 sjljauaq ,seaAo|dwa INOA Bulipys
sjlodal apiaoid |Im palusp3 yluow yoog

o
N~
(B)
(@)
©
(a

9bouow o) hso3 @

92U3J3JJIP PaJUSP] oY



$T MN'0d>'paJuapPd

}ebpnqg
PUD SPB8U INOA LI} O} SUOIIN|OS JNO JO UOIDUIqUIOD
0 1O BUO JIO|ID} — SIBSN JNOA PUD NOA 104

aioyYd

|9AS| BuluuIM
PIOMD ‘IX8U 8yl O} sewwniBold INOA a0}
0} asilJadxa ayl ylim swpal Jybu ayl — a|doad e

SN YlIm ssauisng

Op SpuUsU} JIBy} {PY} ISISUl SISWOLSND INO JO

%001 [HUN op am BulylAlons JO |IDlap 1SO| AloAd
Buinociduwil dOJS 1OU [|IM SM — SIBWOLISND IO UOISSDY »

sowayos Buiboubw pup
‘Buiyounpo| ‘dn Bulpias Jo usping UIlpD pup ‘}SOD
‘uind 8yl 1NO a3} O} SI UOISSILI INO — 8503 g PoadS

Bulwoo
uo deaay Isnl 1y} sjusuwBdUDPYyUd 8oUPWIoHSd
PUD SaINIDB} MBU Y}lIM SODS JUSDI||©iUl — UOIJDAOUU] «

sn>oj g h)IjIbo acINIaS

sJUDYDJBW |ID18I JO spalpuny Buipn|oul ‘sisupod
1O JIOMIBU BUIMOIB PUD JSDA — PBJOBUUOD ||OM e

BullDl $,100d ¢ PIOPUDIS +999g pPUD
Buiipl [oalispig g ung VS — Yibualls [oIounuUld e

fusli|o
10 $8ZIS puUD SodAl |0 YlIM BUBIOM JO MOY-MOU>| By}
Ulim dnoub [puolioulalul Up Jo pod — adusuadx] e

Ajonb puo Ajunoas
DIDP IO} SUOIID}IPSIDDD S|IPIIUBSST JOGAD PUD |00 |

PUD ‘G10Z:1006 10042 OSI — A{ND3S g AHIOND -

PUIW JO 9503d 3 9dOUIPUOD)

Page 80



020IMNHF9S L

dnoJHYNPE3IUSPID @ )N PaJUaP3 @ WNP3JU3P3® @

Wo3°'P3JUIP3@I0P3IANT-53J0s-HS ([ 3N"0d'PAIUIPD @ GYL6 2€6 LO020 @

¢)O9UUO0D 0) hpoo's




Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 82



Caerphilly County Borough Council - Integrated Impact Assessment
This integrated impact assessment (IlA) has been designed to help support the Council in making informed and effective decisions whilst ensuring compliance

with a range of relevant legislation, including:
» Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 » Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011
» Socio-economic Duty — Sections 1 to 3 of the Equality Act 2010 » Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
» Statutory Consultation v Doctrine of Legitimate Expectation and Gunning Principles

PLEASE NOTE: Section 3 Socio-economic Duty only needs to be completed if proposals are of a strategic nature or when reviewing previous strategic
decisions. See page 6 of the Preparing for the Commencement of the Socio-economic Duty Welsh Government Guidance.

1. Proposal Details
Head of Service Service Area & Department Date
31.08.21

1l.ead Officer
People Services

U
g.ynne Donovan Lynne Donovan

R o

€89

What is the proposal to be assessed? Provide brief details of the proposal and provide a link to any relevant report or documents.

The introduction of a new staff benefits and reward platform that will support the forthcoming Wellbeing Strategy and also to further recognise long

service.



https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf

2. Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011
(The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and

victimisation; advance equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between different groups). Please note that an
individual may have more than one protected characteristic.

Protected Characteristics

Does the proposal have any positive,
negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

If there are negative impacts how will
these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to
support this view?

Age (people of all ages)

Staff benefits — positive

40 years’ service - positive impact on
staff with 40 years’ service

See Appendix 1 of main report.

o-afRv 1
N

Disability (people with
U!isabilities/ long term
Dconditions)

D
0

Neutral impact. The staff benefits
scheme applies to all staff and the long
service award is available to all staff
that achieve 40 years’ continuous Local
Government Service.

Gender Reassignment
(anybody who’s gender
identity or gender
expression is different to
the sex they were assigned
at birth)

Neutral impact. The staff benefits
scheme applies to all staff and the long
service award is available to all staff
that achieve 40 years’ continuous Local
Government Service.

Marriage or Civil
Partnership (people who
are married or in a civil
partnership)

Neutral impact. The staff benefits
scheme applies to all staff and the long
service award is available to all staff
that achieve 40 years’ continuous Local
Government Service.



https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues

Pregnancy and Maternity
(women who are pregnant
and/or on maternity
leave)

Neutral impact. The staff benefits
scheme applies to all staff and the long
service award is available to all staff
that achieve 40 years’ continuous Local
Government Service.

Race (people from black,
Asian and minority ethnic
communities and different
racial backgrounds)

Neutral impact. The staff benefits
scheme applies to all staff and the long
service award is available to all staff
that achieve 40 years’ continuous Local
Government Service.

Protected Characteristics

Does the proposal have any positive,
negative or neutral impacts on the
protected characteristics and how?

If there are negative impacts how will
these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to
support this view?

and beliefs including
people with no beliefs)

b |
&

N li . Th ff fi
(PReligion or Belief (people eutra |mpa'ct e staff benefits
cﬁvith different religions scheme applies to all staff and the long
! service award is available to all staff

that achieve 40 years’ continuous Local
Government Service.

Sex (women and men,
girls and boys and those
who self-identify their
gender)

Neutral impact. The staff benefits
scheme applies to all staff and the long
service award is available to all staff
that achieve 40 years’ continuous Local
Government Service.

Sexual Orientation
(lesbian, gay, bisexual,
heterosexual)

Neutral impact. The staff benefits
scheme applies to all staff and the long
service award is available to all staff



https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues

that achieve 40 years’ continuous Local
Government Service.

3. Socio-economic Duty (Strategic Decisions Only)
(The Socio-economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key decision making.

Socio-economic disadvantage means living on a low income compared to others in Wales, with little or no accumulated wealth, leading to greater

material deprivation, restricting the ability to access basic goods and services)
Please consider these additional vulnerable groups and the impact your proposal may or may not have on them:

~o- By 1

> Single parents and vulnerable families > Carers > People who have experienced the asylum system
> People with low literacy/numeracy > Armed Forces Community > People of all ages leaving a care setting
> Pensioners > Students > People living in the most deprived areas in Wales (WIMD)
> Looked after children > Single adult households > People involved in the criminal justice system
> Homeless people > People misusing substances
(9] Does the proposal have any positive, .. .
. .. . . If there are negative impacts how What evidence has been used to
PSocio-economic Disadvantage negative or neutral impacts on the . " ..
D . will these be mitigated? support this view?
D following and how?
DO
D)

The staff benefits scheme provides a
positive impact by offering staff the
ability to access shopping discounts
at hundreds of big-brand online,
high street and local retailers. By

Low Income / Income Poverty making shopping for goods and
(cannot afford to maintain regular | services a little bit cheaper,
payments such as bills, food, employees can save money on many
clothing, transport etc.) regular and one off purchases The

platform also provides useful
information to help employees with
everyday financial issues as well as
providing access to charity and
insurance sites.



https://gov.wales/socio-economic-duty-overview

Socio-economic Disadvantage

Does the proposal have any
positive, negative or neutral
impacts on the following and how?

If there are negative impacts how
will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to
support this view?

Low and/or No Wealth (enough
money to meet basic living costs
and pay bills but have no savings to
deal with any unexpected spends
and no provisions for the future)

The staff benefits scheme provides a
positive impact by offering staff the
ability to access shopping discounts
at hundreds of big-brand online,
high street and local retailers,. By
making shopping for goods and
services a little bit cheaper,
employees can save money on many
regular and one off purchases. The
platform also provides useful
information to help employees with
everyday financial issues.

Material Deprivation (unable to
access basic goods and services i.e.
financial products like life
insurance, repair/replace broken
electrical goods, warm home,
hobbies etc.)

gf)' The staff benefits scheme provides a
“(% positive impact by offering staff the
Fre) ability to access shopping discounts
~ at hundreds of big-brand online,

high street and local retailers. By
making shopping for goods and
services a little bit cheaper,
employees can save money on many
regular and one off purchases which
can support their access to financial
products like life insurance,
repair/replace broken electrical
goods, warm home, hobbies etc.
The platform also provides useful
information to help employees with
everyday financial issues including
access to insurance sites.



https://gov.wales/socio-economic-duty-overview

Area Deprivation (where you live
(rural areas), where you work
(accessibility of public transport)

Neutral impact

Socio-economic Background
(social class i.e. parents education,
employment and income)

Neutral impact

Socio-economic Disadvantage
(What cumulative impact will the
proposal have on people or groups
because of their protected
characteristic(s) or vulnerability or
because they are already
{disadvantaged)

J

Neutral impact

gg abe




4. Corporate Plan — Council’s Well-being Objectives
(How does your proposal deliver against any/all of the Council’s Well-being Objectives? Which in turn support the national well-being goals for Wales

as outlined in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Are there any impacts (positive, negative or neutral? If there are negative

impacts how have these been mitigated?) Well-being Objectives

Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all

Neutral impact

Objective 2 - Enabling employment

Neutral impact

Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of
homes throughout the county borough and provide advice, assistance
or support to help improve people’s well-being

Neutral impact

Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable
transport system that increases opportunity, promotes prosperity
DUand minimises the adverse impact on the environment

~

N/A

00 "\RY\ ]

e

D
XObjective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports healthy

Qifestyle in accordance with the Sustainable Development principle
with in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Positive impact. The discount for staff accessing leisure facilities in the county
borough helps to promote a healthy and active lifestyle, which has a positive impact on
mental health wellbeing.

Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve
their well-being

The staff benefits scheme provides a positive impact by offering staff the ability
to access shopping discounts at hundreds of big-brand online, high street and
local retailers. By making shopping for goods and services a little bit cheaper,
employees can save money on many regular and one off purchases, which
hopefully can support a healthy lifestyle and improve wellbeing. The platform
also provides useful information to help employees with everyday financial
issues as well as providing access insurance sites.



https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/Corporate_Plan_2018-2023.aspx

4a. Links to any other relevant Council Policy

(How does your proposal deliver against any other relevant Council Policy?)

The Council’s Wellbeing Strategy 2021 — 24 focuses on five key areas of wellbeing: Health & Lifestyle, Environment, Culture & Values, Personal
Development and Financial Wellbeing. The introduction of staff benefits via the EdenRed platform and the extension of the Long Service Award

support the principles of the Strategy, in particular financial wellbeing.

The platform also supports the local economy by enabling local businesses across Caerphilly to promote their businesses and offers directly to our
employees and, in doing so, provides the opportunity for our staff to access discounts while still ‘shopping local’.

5. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 — The Five Ways of Working (ICLIP)

(Also known as the sustainable development principles. The Act requires the Council to consider how any proposal improves the economic, social,
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales using the five ways of working as a baseline)

Ways of Working | How have you used the Sustainable Development Principles in forming the proposal?

Long Term
The employee benefits platform offers a framework of financial support for our employees. Aligned to the Council’s Wellbeing

Strategy this will have a long term positive impact on employees.

faVal "\RV\ ]
JO O90Cq

Prevention
The employee benefits platform provides support to our employees’ wellbeing (including financial). Our commitment to our

employee’ wellbeing will have preventative benefits.



https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/content/5-ways-working

Integration

Working in synergy with relevant strategies, we will continue to develop a strong organisational culture and values and strengthen the work
W environment by fully supporting the health and wellbeing of our employees.

Collaboration

The employee benefits platform supports the local economy by enabling local businesses across Caerphilly to promote their

M‘ businesses and offers directly to our employees.
Involvement
These proposals are not terms and conditions of employment but benefits available to all employees. The Trade Unions have been
& consulted. The impact on the community can be economically positive and we will be engaging with local businesses to offer the

opportunity to promote their service via the platform.

afed

6. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Well-being Goals Does the proposal maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goal and how?

A Prosperous Wales

An innovative, productive and low carbon society
which recognises the limits of the global environment
and therefore uses resources efficiently and
proportionately (including acting on climate change); | N/A
and which develops a skilled and well-educated
population in an economy which generates wealth
and provides employment opportunities, allowing
people to take advantage of the wealth generated
through securing decent work

A Resilient Wales
A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse
natural environment healthy functioning ecosystems



https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies,-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act

that support social, economic and ecological
resilience and the capacity to adapt to change (for
climate change)

N/A

A Healthier Wales

A society in which people’s physical and mental well-
being is maximised and in which choices and
behaviours that benefit future health are understood

The benefits scheme supports our commitment to employee wellbeing, which is critical for
business performance. A healthy workplace, that promotes a state of contentment, benefits
both employees and the organisation.

A More Equal Wales

A society that enables people to fulfil their potential
no matter what their background or circumstances
(including their socio-economic background and
d:ircumstances)

N/A

§Well-being Goals

Does the proposal maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goal and how?

o ¥ o) "\RV“

O
N

A Wales of Cohesive Communities
Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected
communities

N/A

A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh
Language

A society that promotes and protects culture,
heritage and the Welsh language, and which
encourages people to participate in the arts, and
sports and recreation

N/A

A Globally Responsible Wales
A nation which, when doing anything to improve the
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-

being of Wales, takes account of whether doing such

N/A

10



https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies,-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act

a thing may make a positive contribution to global

well-being

7. Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and Welsh Language Standards
(The Welsh Language Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards require the Council to have ‘due regard’ for the positive or

negative impact a proposal may have on opportunities to use the Welsh language and ensuring the Welsh language is treated no less

favourably than the English language) insert link to WL Commissioners Policy Making Standards Guidance

Requirement

Does the proposal have any
positive, negative or neutral

impacts on the following and how?

If there are negative impacts
how will these be mitigated?

What evidence has been used to
support this view?

e.g the WESP, TAN20, LDP, Pupil
Level Annual School Census

Links with Welsh Government’s Cymraeg

2050 Strategy and CCBC'’s Five Year Welsh

Language Strategy 2017-2022 and the
l_!.anguage Profile

Neutral impact

D

DCompliance with the Welsh Language
Stam.al.ards.

Wbpecifically Standards 88 - 93

Neutral impact. The platform will be
bilingual

Opportunities to promote the Welsh
language e.g. status, use of Welsh language
services, use of Welsh in everyday life in
work / community

Neutral impact. The platform will be
bilingual

Opportunities for persons to use the
Welsh language e.g. staff, residents and
visitors

Neutral impact. The platform will be
bilingual

Treating the Welsh language no less

favourably than the English language

Neutral impact. The platform will be
bilingual

11



https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/WelsLanguageStrategy2017_22.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/WelsLanguageStrategy2017_22.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx

7a. Having considered the impacts above, how has the proposal been developed so that there are positive effects, or increased positive effects on

(a) opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language, and b) treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language.

The platform will be bilingual, providing opportunities for staff to use Welsh language and to ensure that it is not treated less favourably than English language.

8. Data and Information
(What data or other evidence has been used to inform the development of the proposal? Evidence may include the outcome of previous consultations,

existing databases, pilot projects, review of customer complaints and compliments and or other service user feedback, national and regional data,

~ ~AvY
N

academic publications and consultants’ reports etc.)

Data/evidence . How has the data/evidence informed this
s . . Key relevant findings
(Please provide link to report if appropriate) proposal?

tPpportunities available at no cost to the Council
Dyia the National Procurement Service (NPS)
Dframework

O N/A N/A

Were there any gaps identified in the evidence and data used to develop this proposal and how will these gaps be filled?
Details of further consultation can be included in Section 9.

N/A

12




9. Consultation
(In some instances, there is a legal requirement to consult. In others, even where there is no legal obligation, there may be a legitimate expectation

from people that a consultation will take place. Where it has been determined that consultation is required, The Gunning Principles must be adhered to.

Consider the Consultation and Engagement Framework. Please note that this may need to be updated as the proposal develops and to strengthen the
assessment.

Briefly describe any recent or planned consultations paying particular attention to evidencing the Gunning Principles.

Clir. Philippa Marsden, Leader of the Council

Clir. Colin Gordon, Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance
Corporate Management Team

Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer,

Steve Harris, Head of Corporate Finance/s.151 officer,

Leadership Team

Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer

UClIr Gez Kirby, Chair of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee

NClIr Brenda Miles, Vice Chair of Policy and resources Scrutiny Committee

PTrade Unions
O
J1

Consultation provided enough time for consultees to consider and respond

Yes

No

Yes

13


https://www.consultationinstitute.org/the-gunning-principles-implications/
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx

10. Monitoring and Review

How will the implementation and the impact
of the proposal be monitored, including
implementation of any amendments?

Implementation will be the responsibility of the Head of People Services. Monitoring will be the
responsibility of the Head of People Services and the Head of Customer & Digital Services

What are the practical arrangements for Contract management with the Head of People Services, Head of Customer & Digital Services and
monitoring? EdenRed

How will the results of the monitoring be

used to develop future proposals? Ongoing

R s e sl e e e S Ongoing in accordance with contract arrangement and the NPS framework

Who is responsible for ensuring this Head of People Services
happens?

11. Recommendation and Reasoning

X Implement proposal with no amendments

Implement proposal taking account of the mitigating actions outlined

Reject the proposal due to disproportionate impact on equality, poverty and socio-economic disadvantage

Have you contacted relevant officers for advice and guidance? Yes X No

14



12. Reason(s) for Recommendation

(Provide below a summary of the Integrated Impact Assessment. This summary should be included in the “Summary of Integrated Impact Assessment”
section of the Corporate Report Template. The Integrated Impact Assessment should be published alongside the Report proposal).

Whilst the IlA indicates many neutral impacts, there are positive impacts for our employees’ wellbeing and the community. The proposals also support
the principles of wellbeing as set out in the Wellbeing Strategy 2021 — 24.

Version No. Author Brief description of the amendments/update Revision Date
1 Lynne Donovan First version 01.09.21

-
()

: Integrated Impact Assessment Author
(le,

~Name: Lynne Donovan

Job Title: | Head of People Services
Date: 01.09.21

Head of Service Approval

Name: Lynne Donovan

Job Title: | Head of People Services
Signature: Date: | 01.09.21




Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 98



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 8

R\
CAERPHILLY

OQUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
[ YNGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

CABINET - 15TH SEPTEMBER 2021

SUBJECT: FREEDOM OF BOROUGH - OLYMPIC MEDALLISTS
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE
SERVICES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report is to seek a decision on whether the Cabinet wishes to recommend that
Council admit as Honorary Freeman of the Borough the Caerphilly County Borough
athletes who were successful in achieving medals at the Tokyo Olympics 2020.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 Under Section 249(5) of the Local Government Act 1972 a Borough Council can
grant the Freedom of the Borough to "persons of distinction and persons who have,
in the opinion of the Council, rendered eminent services to the Borough". In order to
grant the Freedom of the Borough, a resolution must be passed by not less than two
thirds of the members voting at a meeting of the Council.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Cabinet are asked to recommend to Council the following:

3.2 In pursuance of Section 249 (as amended) of the Local Government Act 1972 the
Council confers upon the following athletes, the Freedom of the County Borough of

Caerphilly:

Lauren Price Gold Medallist - Boxing Women’s Middleweight (75kg)
Lauren Williams Silver Medallist - Taekwondo Women'’s -67kg

4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS
4.1 To give public recognition to the Olympic medallists and demonstrate the high

esteem in which they are held by Caerphilly County Borough Council and the people
of the County Borough.

5. THE REPORT

51 Councillor Phillipa Marsden, Leader of Council, Councillor Colin Mann, Leader of

Page 99



5.2

5.3

5.4

55

5.6

Plaid Cymru Group and Councillor Kevin Etheridge Leader of the Independents
Group have nominated the following athletes for the Freedom of the County Borough
of Caerphilly, in recognition of their inspirational and outstanding achievements at the
Tokyo Olympics 2020:

Lauren Price — Gold Medallist Women’s Boxing Middleweight
Lauren Williams — Silver Medallist, - 67kg Women’s Taekwondo

The tradition of Boroughs conferring the Freedom goes back to ancient times when
the Royal Charter Boroughs were almost, if not entirely, self-governing. Originally,
such conferment conveyed special privileges of various kinds upon the recipient that
could involve the right to vote, property and local taxation benefits.

Over the years, and especially since the passing of the Reform Act 1983 and the
Municipal Corporations Act 1835, successive Acts of Parliament have sought
amongst other things severely to curtail the extent of the privileges so that, today, the
conferment is purely honorary. Today’s Freemen have no special rights.

However, the tradition is maintained as a means whereby public recognition may be
given to the recipients as an expression of the high esteem in which, they are held by
the Council and people of the Borough.

Council agreed at the meeting dated 29th January 2008 to award Freedom of the
Borough and Cabinet subsequently agreed the nomination criteria at the meeting
dated 3rd March 2009. These criteria are set out below:

Nomination criteria

(a) Nominations must show that the nominee is a ‘person/s of distinction and/or a
person/s who has rendered eminent services to the County Borough'.

(b) In keeping with special nature of the award conferment should be strictly limited to
those who have made a very significant contribution to the locality either on the
national or international scene. It should be noted that the Council already has an
annual award scheme for the Voluntary Sector Achievement Awards, (which also
encompasses the Mayoral Civic Awards) to recognise those who have made an
important contribution to the local community especially in a voluntary capacity.

Conclusion

By conferring the Freedom of the Borough, Caerphilly County Borough Council gives
an opportunity to recognise the achievements and work of individuals and
organisations within its community. The Gold, Silver and Bronze Medals awarded to
competitors at the Olympic and Paralympics represent the highest athletic
achievement at the Games. Therefore, awarding the Freedom of the Borough would
recognise their achievement and the positive public sentiment that has been
demonstrated towards the medallists.

Cabinet are asked to consider the nomination against the criteria outlined in this
report as set out in 5.5 and make a recommendation to Council.

ASSUMPTIONS

Page 100



6.1 The recommendation as set out in this report assumes that Members will wish to
recognise their achievements and support conferring the Freedom of the Borough
upon the Olympic Medallists.

7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1  Council has previously agreed the procedure and criteria for nominations for Freedom
of the Borough which is a Civic and Ceremonial function.

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 The Local Government, Planning and Land Act 1980 provides that the Authority may
spend such reasonable sum as they think fit for the purpose of presenting an address
or a casket containing an address to any person admitted to be an honorary freeman.

8.2 The ceremonial presentation and reception for each nominee shall be funded from
the Mayoral office funds in consultation with the Chief Executive and Leader of the
Council.

9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are no personnel implications.

10. CONSULTATIONS

10.1  There are no consultation responses not included within this report.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1 The Local Government Act 1972, (as amended) and The Local Government,
Planning and Land Act 1980.

Author: Catherine Forbes-Thompson, Scrutiny Manager, forbecl@caerphilly.gov.uk

Consultees: Christina Harrhy Chief Executive,
Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director Education and Corporate Services,
Robert Tranter Head of Legal and Monitoring Officer
Lisa Lane Deputy Monitoring Officer and Head of Democratic Services
Clir P Marsden, Council Leader
Clir C Mann, Plaid Cymru Group Leader
Clir K Etheridge, Independents Group Leader

Background Papers:

Council report 29th January 2008.

Page 101



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 102



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 9

i
LAERDIIILLY

Frar y = g9 = =58
-
CABINET - 15™ SEPTEMBER 2021

PUBLIC INTEREST TEST — EXEMPTION FROM DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS
PARAGRAPHS 14 AND 16 OF SCHEDULE 12A LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

SUBJECT: THE LAWNS, RHYMNEY COST OVERUN REPORT

REPORT BY: MONITORING OFFICER

| have considered grounds for exemption of information contained in the report referred to above and make the
following recommendations to the Proper Officer:-

EXEMPTIONS APPLYING TO THE REPORT:
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that
information) (Paragraph 14).

Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings
(Paragraph 16).

FACTORS IN FAVOUR OF DISCLOSURE:
There is a public interest in the way in which the Council manages its contracts.

PREJUDICE WHICH WOULD RESULT IF THE INFORMATION WERE DISCLOSED:

The Report includes legal advice in relation to a number of contractual scenarios. The report also contains detailed
financial information about the contractual arrangements.

MY VIEW ON THE PUBLIC INTEREST TEST IS AS FOLLOWS:
That paragraphs 14 and 16 should apply.

In relation to paragraph 16, the exemption is absolute, and the public interest test does not need to be considered.

In relation to paragraph 14, | am mindful of the need to ensure the transparency and accountability in the way the
council manages its contracts. However, disclosure of the information contained in the report would result in financial
information of the company being in the public domain which the company would expect to be confidential at this
stage.

On that basis | feel that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information. Members are asked to consider these factors when determining the public interest test, which they must
decide when considering excluding the public from this part of the meeting.

RECOMMENDED DECISION ON EXEMPTION FROM DISCLOSURE:

On the basis set out above | feel that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, and that the report should be exempt.

Signed: | Dated: 7.9.21

Post: Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer

| accept/de-notaccept the recommendation made above.

Signed: Date: 07.09.2021
Proper Officer
Page 103




Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 104



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 16 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 105



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



	Agenda
	3 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 1 Medi 2021.
	4 Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.
	5 Bwrdd Adfywio – Cynigion Prosiect.
	Atodiad 1

	6 Prosbectws a Chynllun Datblygu Rhaglenni Llywodraeth Cymru (PDP).
	Atodiad 4

	7 Darparu Cynllun Buddion a Chydnabod Staff.
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2

	8 Rhyddid y Fwrdeistref - Enillwyr Olympaidd.
	9 Prawf lles y cyhoedd. I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad canlynol sydd ym marn y Swyddog Priodol yn gallu cael ei drafod pan nad yw'r cyfarfod ar agor i'r cyhoedd ac i ystyried yn gyntaf os yw lles y cyhoedd yn golygu y dylai'r cyfarfod gael ei gau i'r cyhoedd ar gyfer ystyriaeth o'r eitem-
	10 Adroddiad Gorwario Cost – Y Lawnt, Rhymni.

